
 

 

     Ffôn/Tel: 01656 643643                                                   Facs/Fax: 01656 668126          Ebost/Email: talktous@bridgend.gov.uk                                                                                  

     Negeseuon SMS/ SMS Messaging: 07581 157014           Twitter@bridgendCBC              Gwefan/Website: www.bridgend.gov.uk 

Cyfnewid testun: Rhowch 18001 o flaen unrhyw un o’n rhifau ffon ar gyfer y gwasanaeth trosglwyddo testun 

Text relay: Put 18001 before any of our phone numbers for the text relay service 

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg. Rhowch wybod i ni os yw eich dewis iaith yw’r Gymraeg  
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please let us know if your language choice is Welsh 

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. 
Rhowch wybod i ni os mai Cymraeg yw eich 

dewis iaith. 
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please 
let us know if your language choice is Welsh. 

 

Cyfarwyddiaeth y Prif Weithredwr / Chief 
Executive’s Directorate  
Deialu uniongyrchol / Direct line /: 01656 643148 / 
643147 / 643694 
Gofynnwch am / Ask for:  Democratic Services/ 
Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
 
Ein cyf / Our ref:       
Eich cyf / Your ref:       
 
Dyddiad/Date: Dydd Mercher, 13 Mawrth 2024 

 

Annwyl Cynghorydd,  
 
 PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 3 
 
Cynhelir Cyfarfod Pwyllgor Craffu Testun 3 Hybrid yn Siambr y Cyngor - Swyddfeydd Dinesig, Stryd 
yr Angel, Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr, CF31 4WB/ o bell trwy Dimau Microsoft ar Dydd Mawrth, 19 Mawrth 
2024 am 16:00. 
 
AGENDA 
 
1.  Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb    

 Derbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan Aelodau. 

 
2.  Datganiadau o fuddiant    
 Derbyn datganiadau o ddiddordeb personol a rhagfarnol (os o gwbl) gan Aelodau / 

Swyddogion yn unol â darpariaethau'r Cod Ymddygiad Aelodau a fabwysiadwyd gan y 
Cyngor o 1 Medi 2008.  
 

3.  Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion   3 - 18 

 I dderbyn am gymeradwyaeth y Cofnodion cyfarfod y 19/06/23, 25/07/23 a 22/01/24.  
 

4.  Opsiynau Gwasanaeth Gwastraff yn y Dyfodol   19 - 74 
  

Gwahoddwyr: 
 

Cynghorydd Huw David - Arweinydd y Cyngor 
Cynghorydd John Spanswick - Aelod Cabinet dros y Newid yn yr Hinsawdd a’r Amgylchedd  

 
Janine Nightingale - Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol, Cymunedau  
Zak Shell - Pennaeth Gweithrediadau - Gwasanaethau Cymunedol 
Jen Sparrow – Rheolwr Contract Strydoedd Glanach a Gwastraff 
 

5.  Casgliadau ac Argymhellion  
 

 

6.  Diweddariad Rhaglen Gwaith  
 

75 - 98 

Public Document Pack

mailto:talktous@bridgend.gov.uk
http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/


7.  Materion Brys    

 I ystyried unrhyw eitemau o fusnes y, oherwydd amgylchiadau arbennig y cadeirydd o'r farn 
y dylid eu hystyried yn y cyfarfod fel mater o frys yn unol â Rhan 4 (pharagraff 4) o'r 
Rheolau Trefn y Cyngor yn y Cyfansoddiad. 
 

 
 
Nodyn:  Bydd hwn yn gyfarfod Hybrid a bydd Aelodau a Swyddogion mynychu trwy Siambr y 
Cyngor, Swyddfeydd Dinesig, Stryd yr Angel, Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr / o bell Trwy Timau Microsoft. 
Bydd y cyfarfod cael ei recordio i’w drosglwyddo drwy wefan y Cyngor.  Os oes gennych unrhyw 
gwestiwn am hyn, cysylltwch â cabinet_committee@bridgend.gov.uk neu ffoniwch 01656 643148 / 
643694 / 643513 / 643696.  
 
Yn ddiffuant 
K Watson 
Prif Swyddog, Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Rheoleiddio, AD a Pholisi Corfforaethol 
 
Dosbarthiad: 
 
Cynghorwyr Cynghorwyr Cynghorwyr 
S J Bletsoe 
N Clarke 
C Davies 
P Davies 

M J Evans 
P W Jenkins 
MJ Kearn 
W J Kendall 

J E Pratt 
G Walter 
I Williams 
MJ Williams 



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 3 - DYDD LLUN, 19 MEHEFIN 2023 

 
COFNODION CYFARFOD O BWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU PWNC 3 A 
GYNHALIWYD AR FFURF HYBRID YN SIAMBR Y CYNGOR - SWYDDFEYDD DINESIG, 
STRYD YR ANGEL, PEN-Y-BONT AR OGWR, CF31 4WB, DYDD LLUN, 19 MEHEFIN 2023, 
AM 16:00 

 
Presennol 

 
Y Cynghorydd P Davies – Cadeirydd  

 
S J Bletsoe N Clarke C Davies M J Evans 
P W Jenkins W J Kendall J E Pratt G Walter 
I Williams MJ Williams   

 
Gwahoddwyr: 

 
Cynghorydd Neelo Farr  Aelod Cabinet dros Ddiogelwch Cymunedol a Lles  
 
Janine Nightingale              Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol, Cymunedau 
Zak Shell    Pennaeth Gweithrediadau - Gwasanaethau Cymunedol 
Ieuan Sherwood    Rheolwr y Grŵp - Economi, Adnoddau Naturiol a Chynaliadwyedd 

 
Swyddogion: 

  
Rachel Keepins Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
Meryl Lawrence Uwch Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd - Craffu 
Jessica Mclellan 
Lucy Beard 

Swyddog Craffu 
Swyddog Craffu 
 

35. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB 
 
Y Cynghorydd Mike Kearn. 
 

36. DATGAN BUDDIANNAU 
 
Datganodd y Cynghorydd Melanie Evans fuddiant personol mewn Eitem 4 ar yr Agenda, 
diweddariad ar y Gronfa Ffyniant Gyffredin, fel aelod o Gyngor Tref Pencoed a 
Llywodraethwr Cymunedol ar gyfer Ysgol Gyfun Pencoed ac Ysgol Gynradd Croesty. 
 

37. CYMERADWYO COFNODION 
 
PENDERFYNWYD:  Cymeradwyo cofnodion cyfarfodydd y Pwyllgor Craffu a 

Throsolwg Pwnc 3 ar 26 Medi 2022, 14 Tachwedd 2022, 
12 Rhagfyr 2022, 4 Ionawr 2023 a 23 Ionawr 2023 yn 
gofnod gwir a chywir. 

 
38. DIWEDDARIAD AR Y GRONFA FFYNIANT GYFFREDIN 

 
Cyflwynodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol, Cymunedau yr adroddiad, gyda’r nod o roi 
trosolwg i'r Pwyllgor o gynlluniau grant arfaethedig sydd ar fin dechrau. 
 
Diolchodd y Cadeirydd i'r Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol, Cymunedau a thrafododd y 
Gwahoddedigion a’r Aelodau y canlynol: 
 

 Y cyfnod a gymerir i gymeradwyo cytundeb Cronfa Ffyniant Gyffredin y DU 
(CFfGDU) a'r cyfrifoldeb am hyn.  
  

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 3 - DYDD LLUN, 19 MEHEFIN 2023 

 

 A allai mecanweithiau rheoli risg alluogi defnyddio arian o gronfeydd wrth gefn y 
Cyngor i fwrw ymlaen â chynlluniau a'u disodli pan dderbyniwyd cyllid i alluogi 
prosiectau i barhau lle cytunwyd ar gyllid mewn egwyddor. 

 

 Dyraniad CFfGDU yn nhabl Prifddinas-Ranbarth Caerdydd (CCR) ac 8.3% o 
gyfanswm dyraniad cyllid yr Awdurdod o'r rhanbarth, gan eu rhoi yn yr 8fed o'r 10 
Awdurdod Lleol ar gyfer canran y cyllid. 

 

 Gweithio ar y cyd a sicrwydd bod cefnogaeth ac adnoddau ar gael i bobl sy'n 
gwneud cais am grantiau a chydweithio â'r sector gwirfoddol a grwpiau 
cymunedol llai i feithrin cadernid a datblygu economaidd.  

 
Dywedodd y Cadeirydd nad oedd unrhyw gwestiynau pellach i'r Gwahoddedigion, 
diolchodd i'r Gwahoddedigion am eu presenoldeb a dywedodd y gallent adael y cyfarfod. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD: Yn dilyn ystyriaeth fanwl a thrafodaethau gydag Aelodau 

Cabinet a Swyddogion, gwnaeth y Pwyllgor yr 
Argymhellion canlynol:  

 

1. Er bod y Pwyllgor yn cydnabod bod dechrau cynllun neu brosiect cyn 
cadarnhad ysgrifenedig o unrhyw Gyllid Grant y Llywodraeth yn peri 
rhywfaint o risg, fe wnaeth yr Aelodau ystyried a oedd y broses a 
gynhaliwyd gan y Cabinet a'r Swyddogion wedi ystyried y risg na fyddai 
Llywodraeth y DU yn caniatáu cyflwyno cyllid blwyddyn 1 i flwyddyn 2.  
Felly, argymhellodd yr Aelodau i'r Cabinet ystyried a oedd dechrau'r 
broses o'r prosiectau hyn cyn derbyn cyllid yn risg gyfiawn wrth symud 
ymlaen a hefyd yn rhoi sicrwydd ynghylch sut y gallent sicrhau y bydd yn 
cael ei ystyried mewn penderfyniadau yn y dyfodol, gan na fyddai'r 
Awdurdod am dderbyn dim llai na'r 8.3% a gyhoeddwyd gan Lywodraeth y 
Deyrnas Unedig (DU). 
 

2. Mae'r Pwyllgor hefyd yn argymell y dylid archwilio ffordd o ddarparu cyllid 
interim byrdymor (gan gynnwys cronfeydd wrth gefn posibl) ar gyfer 
prosiectau sydd â lefel uchel o sicrwydd o Gyllid Grant a rhoddir ystyriaeth 
i fecanweithiau ar gyfer rheoli risg a chaniatáu i brosiectau ddechrau lle 
cytunwyd ar Gyllid Grant mewn egwyddor, ond heb eu ffurfioli eto.  

 
a gofynnodd y Pwyllgor:  

 
3. Rhoi gwybod i'r Aelodau am y canlyniad, cyn gynted â phosibl, ynghylch a 

oedd y cais a wnaed gan nifer o Awdurdodau i gyflwyno cyllid blwyddyn 1 i 
flwyddyn 2 wedi'i roi ai peidio.  
 

4. Gwybodaeth a gynigiodd y Cyfarwyddwr Cymunedau ynghylch ymgysylltu â 
grwpiau cymunedol i sefydlu lefel y galw am Gyllid Grant Buddsoddi Lleol Pen-y-
bont ar Ogwr a'r cymorth sydd ei angen. Roedd hyn mewn ymateb i bryderon yr 
Aelodau ynghylch cyfrifoldebau a dibyniaeth ar wirfoddolwyr a sefydliadau i 
gyflawni'r prosiectau ac esboniadau'r Swyddogion mai rhan o'r CFfGDU oedd 
meithrin cadernid a datblygu economaidd, gan dargedu cymunedau nad oes 
ganddynt fynediad i'r math hwnnw o gyllid fel arfer. 

 
 
 

Page 4



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 3 - DYDD LLUN, 19 MEHEFIN 2023 

 
39. ADRODDIAD ENWEBU PENCAMPWR RHIANTA CORFFORAETHOL 

 
Cyflwynodd y Swyddog Craffu yr adroddiad a ofynnodd i'r Pwyllgor enwebu un Aelod fel 
ei Hyrwyddwr Rhianta Corfforaethol i gynrychioli'r Pwyllgor fel gwahoddedig i 
gyfarfodydd Rhianta Corfforaethol Pwyllgor y Cabinet. 
 
Gwahoddodd y Cadeirydd enwebiadau, ac yn dilyn hynny 
 
PENDERFYNWYD:  Enwebu’r Cynghorydd Jonathan Pratt i  

gynrychioli Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Pwnc 3 fel 
Gwahoddedig i gyfarfodydd Rhianta Corfforaethol Pwyllgor 
y Cabinet. 
 

40. DIWEDDARIAD AR Y FLAENRAGLEN WAITH 

 
Trafododd y Pwyllgor y Flaenraglen Waith amlinellol ddrafft a mynegodd yr Aelodau 

bryder bod gan y Gyfarwyddiaeth Cymunedau adnoddau digonol, gan roi sylwadau ar 

lefel arbedion cyllideb y Gyfarwyddiaeth a wnaed dros y 10 i 12 mlynedd diwethaf, lefel y 

swyddi gwag heb eu llenwi, yr ymatebion sy'n weddill i Argymhellion Craffu, ceisiadau 

am wybodaeth ac oedi mewn sicrhau bod adroddiadau ar gael. Pwysleisiodd y Pwyllgor 

nad beirniadaeth o'r Cyfarwyddwr nac unrhyw staff oedd hyn. 

 

Yn dilyn trafodaethau manwl, gwnaeth y Pwyllgor yr argymhellion canlynol: 

 

1. Croesawodd yr Aelodau eu safbwynt o fewn y Pwyllgor i herio a chraffu yn gywir, 

ond roeddent yn unfrydol yn teimlo nad oeddent wedi cael y cyfle a'r cwmpas i 

wneud hynny'n gyson. Mynegodd yr Aelodau bryderon difrifol a'r angen am well 

dealltwriaeth o'r strwythur, yr adnoddau a'r pwysau yn y Gyfarwyddiaeth Cymunedau 

er mwyn deall y sefyllfa yn well ynghylch unrhyw faterion posibl ac i geisio sicrwydd 

bod gan y Gyfarwyddiaeth yr adnoddau i gyflawni'r hyn sydd ei angen.  

  

Cytunodd y Pwyllgor fod y pryder hwn yn hollbwysig ac argymhellodd y dylid gofyn 

am gyfarfod anghyffredin, cyn i'r Pwyllgor graffu ar unrhyw adroddiadau pellach gan 

y Gyfarwyddiaeth a drefnwyd ar y Flaenraglen Waith amlinellol ddrafft.  Gwnaethant 

ofyn i'r Prif Weithredwr, yr Arweinydd a'r Cabinet, a'r Swyddogion Cyllid priodol gael 

eu gwahodd i'r cyfarfod rhyfeddol hwn gyda'r nod penodol o geisio sicrwydd ac, os 

oes angen, cydweithio i nodi atebion posibl.  

 

2. Mae'r Pwyllgor yn gofyn am sicrwydd bod modd cyflawni'r pynciau arfaethedig a 

drefnwyd yn y Flaenraglen Waith Amlinellol ddrafft cyn ystyried a chytuno pellach ar 

eu Blaenraglen Waith.  

PENDERFYNWYD: Cymeradwyodd y Pwyllgor y Flaenraglen Waith yn Atodiad A,  
                                  yn amodol ar ychwanegu'r uchod, nododd y  
                                  Daflen Gweithredu Argymhellion Monitro yn  
                                  Atodiad B a nododd fod y Flaenraglen Waith, 
                                  y Daflen Gweithredu Argymhellion Monitro a byddai unrhyw   
                                  ddiweddariadau gan y Pwyllgor yn cael eu hadrodd i  
                                  gyfarfod nesaf y Pwyllgor. 
    

41. EITEMAU BRYS 
 
Dim. 
 
Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 18:10 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 3 - DYDD MAWRTH, 25 GORFFENNAF 2023 

 
COFNODION CYFARFOD O BWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU PWNC 3 A 
GYNHALIWYD AR FFURF HYBRID YN SIAMBR Y CYNGOR - SWYDDFEYDD DINESIG, 
STRYD YR ANGEL, PEN-Y-BONT AR OGWR, CF31 4WB, DYDD MAWRTH, 25 
GORFFENNAF 2023, AM 16:00 

 
Presennol 

 
Y Cynghorydd C Davies – Cadeirydd  

 
S J Bletsoe N Clarke P W Jenkins MJ Kearn 
W J Kendall J E Pratt G Walter I Williams 
MJ Williams    

 
Gwahoddwyr: 
 
Cynghorydd Huw David  Arweinydd y Cyngor 
Cynghorydd Jane Gebbie Dirprwy Arweinydd ac Aelod Cabinet dros Wasanaethau 

Cymdeithasol ac Iechyd 
Cynghorydd John Spanswick Aelod Cabinet dros y Newid yn yr Hinsawdd a’r 

Amgylchedd 
Cynghorydd Jon-Paul Blundell Aelod Cabinet dros Addysg 
Cynghorydd Neelo Farr  Aelod Cabinet dros Ddiogelwch Cymunedol a Lles  
Cynghorydd Rhys Goode  Aelod Cabinet dros Dai, Cynllunio ac Adfywio 
 
Mark Shephard   Prif Weithredwr 
Carys Lord    Pennaeth Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid 
Janine Nightingale   Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol, Cymunedau  

 
Swyddogion: 
 
Rachel Keepins Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
Meryl Lawrence 
Lucy Beard 

Uwch Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd – Craffu 
Swyddog Craffu 
 

42. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB 
 
Y Cynghorwyr Paul Davies a Melanie Evans.  
 
Dywedodd y Cynghorydd Norah Clarke y byddai angen iddi adael y cyfarfod yn gynnar. 
 

43. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANT 
 
Gwnaeth y Cynghorydd Ian Williams ddatgan buddiant personol fel aelod o Gyngor Tref 
Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr a llywodraethwr Ysgol Gynradd Oldcastle ac Ysgol Gyfun Brynteg. 
 

44. DIWEDDARIAD AR SEFYLLFA A HERIAU'R GYFARWYDDIAETH CYMUNEDAU 
 
Cyflwynodd y Prif Weithredwr yr adroddiad, a'i ddiben oedd diweddaru'r Pwyllgor ar y 
sefyllfa bresennol gyda'r Gyfarwyddiaeth Cymunedau o ran cyllideb ac adnoddau a 
pherfformiad yn y dyfodol.  
 
Diolchodd y Cadeirydd i’r Prif Weithredwr a thrafododd yr Aelodau’r canlynol gyda’r 
gwahoddedigion: 

 

 Lefel swyddi gwag yr Awdurdod o gymharu â chyfraddau awdurdodau eraill, y ffyrdd 
arloesol o symud rhai swyddi gwag ymlaen yn cael eu harchwilio, a'r ailstrwythuro 

Page 7



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 3 - DYDD MAWRTH, 25 GORFFENNAF 2023 

 
sy'n cael ei wneud yn yr adran gynllunio. 
 

 Lefel y cyllid ar gyfer Carbon Sero Net 2030 a chost gwaith y gyfarwyddiaeth tuag 
ato, gan ystyried y cyhoeddiad diweddar gan Lywodraeth y DU o ran arafu’r gwaith 
hwn. 
 

 O ran cwestiwn a oedd unrhyw feincnodi wedi'i gwblhau o ran y gyllideb y pen o'r 
boblogaeth yn yr Awdurdod o’i chymharu ag awdurdodau eraill o faint tebyg yn Ne 
Cymru, nododd y swyddogion y byddai darn o waith drwy Gymdeithas Llywodraeth 
Leol Cymru (CLlLC) yn darparu gwybodaeth feincnodi ar draws awdurdodau dethol 
yng Nghymru ledled rhai gwasanaethau.  
 

 A allai'r Awdurdod ymchwilio i ffyrdd o fuddsoddi arian i gynhyrchu refeniw y gellid ei 
fuddsoddi yn ôl yn y gwasanaethau a ddarperir. 
 

 Disgwyliad uchel y gwasanaethau rheng flaen a ddarperir i gymunedau gan y 
gyfarwyddiaeth, gan gynnwys cyfrifoldebau statudol, edrych i'r dyfodol, archwilio 
gwahanol ffyrdd o weithredu, a'r hyn y gellid ei gyflawni yn unol â'r adnoddau a'r 
gyllideb o fewn y gyfarwyddiaeth mewn model gweithredu seiliedig ar dargedau 
newydd. 
 

 Edrych ar berthynas newydd a gwahanol gyda chynghorau tref a chymuned, a oedd 
yn cael ei nodi yn y Fforwm Cynghorau Tref a Chymuned ac y gellid ei rannu gyda'r 
Pwyllgor.   

 
Dywedodd y Cadeirydd nad oedd unrhyw gwestiynau pellach i'r gwahoddedigion, 
diolchodd i'r gwahoddedigion am fod yn bresennol, a dywedodd y gallent adael y 
cyfarfod. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD: Yn dilyn ystyriaeth fanwl a thrafodaethau ag Aelodau’r Cabinet a 

swyddogion, gwnaeth y Pwyllgor yr argymhellion a ganlyn:  
 

1. Dylid sicrhau bod yr adroddiad Diweddariad ar Sefyllfa a Heriau'r 
Gyfarwyddiaeth Cymunedau ar gael i holl Aelodau'r Pwyllgor.   

 
2. Croesawodd y Pwyllgor y cynnig o gynllun dros y pum mlynedd nesaf i ddatblygu 

model gweithredu seiliedig ar dargedau (TOM) newydd, fel yr eglurwyd gan y 
Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Cymunedau, ar sail yr hyn y gall y Gyfarwyddiaeth 
Cymunedau ei gyflawni yn unol â'i hadnoddau a'i chyllideb. Edrych ar yr holl 
wasanaethau a ddarperir ganddynt, cyfrifoldebau statudol, a disgwyliadau'r 
cymunedau.  Argymhellodd y Pwyllgor, ar yr adeg briodol pan fydd drafft y model 
gweithredu seiliedig ar dargedau ar gael, ei fod yn cael ei ychwanegu at y 
Flaenraglen Waith i'w adolygu gan y Pwyllgor.  
 

3. Bod y Fforwm Cynghorau Tref a Chymuned yn ystyried y model presennol o 
weithio mewn partneriaeth rhwng yr Awdurdod Lleol a’r cynghorau tref a 
chymuned lleol ac archwilio opsiynau ar gyfer gwell cyfathrebu, mwy o 
gydweithio, ac a all yr Awdurdod gynorthwyo cynghorau tref a chymuned i arwain 
rhai darpariaethau gwasanaeth. Gofynnodd yr Aelodau i ganlyniad y drafodaeth 
hon gael ei gyflwyno'n ôl i'r Pwyllgor fel adroddiad gwybodaeth. 
 

45. DIWEDDARIAD AR Y BLAENRAGLEN WAITH 
 

Trafododd y Pwyllgor y flaenraglen waith amlinellol ddrafft a mynegodd yr Aelodau 

bryder o ran a fydd gan y Gyfarwyddiaeth Gymunedau ddigon o adnoddau, gan roi 

Page 8



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 3 - DYDD MAWRTH, 25 GORFFENNAF 2023 

 
sylwadau ar lefel arbedion cyllidebol y gyfarwyddiaeth a wnaed dros y 10 i 12 mlynedd 

diwethaf, lefel y swyddi gwag heb eu llenwi, ymatebion heb eu gwneud i argymhellion y 

Pwyllgor Craffu, ceisiadau am wybodaeth, ac oedi cyn bod adroddiadau ar gael. 

Pwysleisiodd y Pwyllgor nad oedd hyn yn feirniadaeth ar y cyfarwyddwr nac unrhyw 

staff. 
 

Yn dilyn trafodaethau manwl, gwnaeth y Pwyllgor yr argymhellion a ganlyn: 

 

1. Trafododd y Pwyllgor y Gyfarwyddiaeth Cymunedau yn gweithredu gyda 
dyraniad cyllideb o £31 miliwn yn y flwyddyn ariannol 2023/2024, sy'n 
cynrychioli 9% o gyllideb yr awdurdod. Ystyriwyd a oedd unrhyw feincnodi 
wedi'i wneud o ran cyllideb y pen o'r boblogaeth yn yr awdurdod ar gyfer 
cymunedau o'i chymharu â rhai awdurdodau eraill yn Ne Cymru o faint 
tebyg. Dywedodd y Prif Weithredwr fod darn o waith wedi'i gomisiynu drwy 
Gymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru (CLlLC) ac mae’n bwriadu ei rannu 
yng nghyfarfod nesaf Panel Ymchwil a Gwerthuso’r Gyllideb (BREP). 

 
PENDERFYNWYD: Bod y Pwyllgor yn cymeradwyo’r Blaenraglen Waith yn 

Atodiad A, yn amodol ar yr uchod, yn nodi’r Daflen 
Weithredu Monitro Argymhellion yn Atodiad B, ac yn nodi                     
y byddai’r Flaenraglen Waith, y Daflen Weithredu Monitro 
Argymhellion ac unrhyw ddiweddariadau gan y Pwyllgor yn 
cael eu hadrodd i gyfarfod nesaf y Pwyllgor Trosolwg a 
Chraffu Corfforaethol. 

 
46. EITEMAU BRYS 

 
Dim. 
 
 
 
Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 19:15.  
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 3 - DYDD LLUN, 22 IONAWR 2024 

 

COFNODION CYFARFOD O BWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU PWNC  3 A GYNHALIWYD AR FFURF HYBRID YN SIAMBR Y CYNGOR - 
SWYDDFEYDD DINESIG, STRYD YR ANGEL, PEN-Y-BONT AR OGWR, CF31 4WB, DDYDD LLUN, 22 IONAWR 2024, AM 4PM 
 
 

Yn Bresennol 
 

Y Cynghorydd P Davies - Cadeirydd 
 
S J Bletsoe J E Pratt I Williams  

 
 

Yn Bresennol o Bell 
 

N Clarke C Davies M J Evans P W Jenkins 
M J Kearn W J Kendall G Walter M J Williams 
 
 
Ymddiheuriadau am Absenoldeb 
 
 Dim 
 
Swyddogion: 
 
Mark Shephard                           Prif Weithredwr  
Carys Lord                                  Prif Swyddog Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid  
Janine Nightingale                      Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol – Cymunedau  
Zak Shell                                     Pennaeth Gweithrediadau – Gwasanaethau Cymunedol  
 
Rachel Keepins                           Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
Lucy Beard                                  Swyddog Craffu 
Stephen Griffiths                         Swyddog Craffu Dros Dro   
 
 
Aelodau’r Cabinet:  
 
Y Cynghorydd Huw David            Arweinydd y Cyngor  
Y Cynghorydd Jane Gebbie         Dirprwy Arweinydd y Cyngor a’r Aelod Cabinet dros Wasanaethau Cymdeithasol ac Iechyd  
Y Cynghorydd Hywel Williams     Aelod Cabinet dros Gyllid, Adnoddau a’r Gyfraith  

P
age 11



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 3 - DYDD LLUN, 22 IONAWR 2024 

 

Y Cynghorydd John Spanswick    Aelod Cabinet dros Newid Hinsawdd a'r Amgylchedd  
Y Cynghorydd Rhys Goode          Aelod Cabinet dros Dai, Cynllunio ac Adfywio  
Y Cynghorydd Neelo Farr             Aelod Cabinet dros Ddiogelwch Cymunedol a Llesiant  
  
 

  
 
Datganiadau o Fuddiant 
 
Y Cynghorydd Steven Bletsoe – Personol – Aelod o Gyngor Tref Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr  
Y Cynghorydd Melanie Evans – Personol – Aelod o Gyngor Tref Pencoed  
Y Cynghorydd Ian Williams – Personol – Aelod o Gyngor Tref Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr  
Y Cynghorydd Jonathan Pratt – Personol – Aelod o Gyngor Tref Porthcawl  
Y Cynghorydd Paul Davies – Personol – Aelod o Gyngor Tref Maesteg  
Y Cynghorydd Phillip Jenkins – Personol – Aelod o Gyngor Tref Maesteg  
Y Cynghorydd Mike Kearn – Personol – Aelod o Gyngor Cymuned y Pîl  
Y Cynghorydd Martin Williams – Personol – Aelod o Gynghorau Cymuned Coety Uchaf a Llansainffraid-ar-Ogwr  
 
 
 
 

60. Cymeradwyo’r Cofnodion 
 

 

Penderfyniad a Wnaed 
 

Penderfynwyd: Bod cofnodion cyfarfod o Bwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Pwnc 3 dyddiedig 27 Tachwedd 
2023 yn cael eu cymeradwyo fel cofnod gwir a chywir.  

Dyddiad y Gwnaed y 
Penderfyniad 
 

22 Ionawr 2024 

 
 
 
 

61. Strategaeth Ariannol Tymor Canolig 2024-25 i 2027-28 
 

 

Penderfyniad a Wnaed 
 

Penderfynwyd: Yn dilyn ystyriaeth fanwl a thrafodaeth gydag Aelodau Cabinet perthnasol a’r Cyfarwyddwr 
Corfforaethol, gwnaeth y Pwyllgor yr argymhellion a’r sylwadau a ganlyn:  
 
Sylwadau ac Argymhellion Cyffredinol 

P
age 12



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 3 - DYDD LLUN, 22 IONAWR 2024 

 

 
Cyllid Llywodraeth Cymru 
 
Mynegodd y Pwyllgor bryder ynghylch y diffyg cyllid a ddarparwyd gan Lywodraeth Cymru ar 
gyfer deddfwriaeth newydd a gyflwynwyd, a’r effaith a gafodd hyn ar gyllidebau awdurdodau lleol 
o ran bodloni gofynion newydd.  Yr enghraifft a ddefnyddiwyd oedd prydau ysgol am ddim i holl 
blant ysgolion cynradd (UPFSM), ac er nad oedd yn rhan o gylch gwaith cymunedau, tynnodd yr 
Aelodau sylw at y ffaith bod y gofyniad am gyllid ar gyfer UPFSM yn rhoi pwysau ar gyllideb yr 
awdurdod lleol a bod goblygiadau o ganlyniad i hynny ar bob gwasanaeth wrth orfod ariannu 
bylchau yn nghyllideb gyffredinol y Cyngor.  Roedd y Pwyllgor felly'n cefnogi unrhyw gynnig i'r 
Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Corfforaethol ysgrifennu at Lywodraeth Cymru (LlC) i fynegi'r 
pryderon hyn a gofyn am i ddeddfwriaeth newydd ddod gyda chyllid addas a digonol. 
 
1. Proses Ymgynghori ar y Gyllideb 
 

Trafododd y Pwyllgor y broses ymgynghori gyffredinol ar gyfer y gyllideb, gan amlygu'r ffaith, 
er eu bod cael y cyfle i gyflwyno cyllideb a chynnig amgen, gan fod cymaint o Aelodau nad 
ydynt yn sefyll ar y Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Corfforaethol ac felly nad ydynt yn ymwneud â 
Phanel Ymchwil a Gwerthuso’r Gyllideb, roedd yn anodd iawn i Aelodau eraill wybod unrhyw 
fanylion ynghylch unrhyw gynigion amgen.  Defnyddiwyd yr enghraifft o Farina Porthcawl, sef 
pe byddai'r Pwyllgor yn gwybod y llynedd bod yr Awdurdod yn rhoi cymhorthdal i hwn, efallai y 
byddent wedi cynnig hyn fel arbediad arall i'w wneud y llynedd yn lle rhywbeth arall.  
Argymhellodd y Pwyllgor felly fod angen adolygu a gwella holl broses y gyllideb gyda'r nod o 
gydweithio fel ‘Un Cyngor’.  Cytunodd y Pwyllgor i weithio gyda Chymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol 
Cymru ar adolygiad o’r prosesau craffu, gan ganolbwyntio'n benodol ar y broses ymgynghori 
ar y gyllideb. 
 

2. Gwaith Stryd 
  

Wrth nodi'r sylwadau a ddarparwyd mewn perthynas â thîm Gwaith Stryd yr Awdurdod ac mai 
dim ond ar drwyddedau i dalu costau'r Cyngor ei hun y gellid gofyn am gostau, argymhellodd y 
Pwyllgor fod y gyfarwyddiaeth yn ymchwilio i'r hyn yr oedd awdurdodau lleol eraill yn ei wneud 
yn y maes hwn, gan gynnwys Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin, i benderfynu a oedd unrhyw 
bosibilrwydd o gwbl o gynhyrchu incwm. 

P
age 13



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 3 - DYDD LLUN, 22 IONAWR 2024 

 

 
3. COM6 
 

Mewn perthynas â Gwasanaethau Profedigaeth ac arbedion effeithlonrwydd posibl yn y 
dyfodol, argymhellodd yr Aelodau bod yr awdurdod lleol yn ymgysylltu â chynghorau tref a 
chymuned i ystyried lle gallent gynorthwyo a chymryd rhai cyfrifoldebau yn y dyfodol am 
gynnal a chadw mynwentydd yn y fwrdeistref sirol. 

 
4. COM8 
 
a Er cydnabod bod y bwriad i gau gorsaf fysiau Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr yn ymwneud ag arbedion 

cyllideb 2025-2026, mynegodd y Pwyllgor bryderon cryf ynghylch effaith y cynnig hwn, gan 
gynnwys sut y bydd yn effeithio ar y gymuned, tref Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr, a'i chysylltiadau 
trafnidiaeth. Cyfeiriodd y Pwyllgor at orsafoedd bysiau mawr eraill mewn awdurdodau lleol 
eraill lle maent wedi dod o hyd i le ar gyfer hysbysebion ar waliau gwag, gan greu incwm i'r 
awdurdod.  O ystyried faint o le hysbysebu posibl sydd ar gael yng ngorsaf fysiau Pen-y-bont 
ar Ogwr, argymhellodd y Pwyllgor fod yr awdurdod yn cael gwared ar COM8 fel arbediad 
effeithlonrwydd posibl, ac yn lle hynny yn rhoi cynnig ar gyfer creu incwm masnachol posibl er 
mwyn amddiffyn yr orsaf fysiau ar gyfer y dyfodol. 

 
b  Yn ogystal â hyn, gan gefnogi'r hyn a ddywedodd Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Cymunedau 

ynghylch edrych ar asedau'r Cyngor a sut y gallent fod yn fwy ynni-effeithlon, mae'r Pwyllgor 
yn argymell bod y gyfarwyddiaeth yn archwilio mentrau ynni-effeithlon posibl y gellid eu 
cyflwyno i orsaf fysiau Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr.  Awgrymodd yr Aelodau y gellid gosod paneli 
solar, er enghraifft, ar y cyfleuster hwn, a allai helpu i liniaru costau cysylltiedig yr orsaf. 

 
5. COM9 
 

Mewn perthynas â rhoi'r gorau i'r cynllun Shopmobility, argymhellodd y Pwyllgor fod yr 
Awdurdod yn ystyried cysylltu â Chyngor Tref Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr i weld a oedd ganddynt 
unrhyw ddiddordeb mewn cymryd a chynnal y gwasanaeth. 

 
6. COM10 
 

P
age 14



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 3 - DYDD LLUN, 22 IONAWR 2024 

 

Roedd y Pwyllgor yn cefnogi'r cynnig i adolygu ffioedd angori ar gyfer Marina Porthcawl, gyda 
chytundeb na ddylai'r Cyngor fod yn rhoi cymhorthdal i hyn.  Roedd y Pwyllgor o’r farn, ac 
felly’n argymell, y gellid ystyried hyn ymhellach, os nad eleni, ar gyfer y blynyddoedd i ddod, er 
mwyn archwilio a oedd unrhyw botensial i gynyddu’r ffioedd angori ar gyfer y marina fel dull o 
gynhyrchu incwm i'r Awdurdod. 

 
7. COM20 

 
a  Roedd gan y Pwyllgor nifer o bryderon ynghylch COM20, a'r cynnig i gael gwared ar 

adnoddau glanhau strydoedd ychwanegol, o ystyried yr effaith weledol ac amgylcheddol 
bosibl y gallai hyn ei chael ar gymunedau ar draws y fwrdeistref.  Argymhellodd yr Aelodau, 
os darperir cyllid drwy'r llywodraeth ganolog ar gyfer pensiynau athrawon, bod £125,000 o 
hwn yn cael ei ddefnyddio i barhau i ariannu gwaith glanhau strydoedd, gan ddileu COM20 o'r 
gostyngiadau yn y gyllideb. 

 
b  Yn ogystal â hyn, fel rhan o'r angen am newid trawsnewidiol o fewn yr Awdurdod, mae'r 

Pwyllgor yn argymell bod y Cyngor yn ystyried y potensial ar gyfer timau aml-sgil o staff a allai 
gwmpasu cylch gwaith ehangach, megis torri gwair a glanhau strydoedd, fel un enghraifft.  
Mae'r Pwyllgor yn cynnig bod y gyfarwyddiaeth yn edrych ar yr hyn y mae awdurdodau lleol 
cyfagos yn ei wneud yn y maes hwn, gyda'r nod o ddarparu gwasanaeth mwy effeithiol, 
cydgysylltiedig ym Mhen-y-bont ar Ogwr. 

 
8. COM25 
 
a Mewn perthynas â’r cynnig i gau pob Canolfan Ailgylchu Gymunedol am ddiwrnod ychwanegol 

yr wythnos ar y penwythnos, teimlai’r Pwyllgor nad oedd hyn yn dderbyniol, yn enwedig o 
ystyried y ffaith nad oedd wedi gweld effaith y diwrnod cau cyntaf gan nad yw hyn wedi dod i 
rym eto.  Yng ngoleuni'r effaith y gallai hyn ei chael ar y cyhoedd a'r Awdurdod, gan gynnwys 
yr effaith weledol a'r costau cysylltiedig yn sgil cynnydd posibl mewn tipio anghyfreithlon, mae'r 
Pwyllgor yn argymell bod y cynnig hwn yn cael ei ddileu.  Yn lle hynny, mae'r Aelodau'n cynnig 
bod rhywfaint o'r £60,000 hwn yn cael ei ganfod drwy symud ymlaen â'r cynnig i osod Depo 
Pandy yn fasnachol, a nodwyd yn COM24, gan gynnwys hyn yn arbedion 2024-25.   

 
b Argymhellodd yr Aelodau hefyd, os bydd angen arbedion pellach o hyd, bod yr Awdurdod yn 

P
age 15



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 3 - DYDD LLUN, 22 IONAWR 2024 

 

ceisio lleihau oriau agor y canolfannau yn hytrach na chau am ddiwrnod llawn ychwanegol.  
Yn olaf, yn y sefyllfa waethaf posibl, pe bai’n rhaid i’r canolfannau gau am ail ddiwrnod 
ychwanegol, mae’r Pwyllgor yn argymell mai diwrnod arall o’r wythnos yw hwn, nid y 
penwythnos, pan fyddai mwyafrif y cyhoedd yn bwriadu defnyddio’r canolfannau. 

 
c Yn gysylltiedig â COM25, mae'r Pwyllgor yn argymell ymhellach bod yr Awdurdod yn ystyried 

ffyrdd posibl y gallai'r Canolfannau Ailgylchu Cymunedol weithio'n ddoethach, megis cyflwyno 
apwyntiadau i leihau ciwiau.  Dywedodd yr Aelodau fod rhai awdurdodau lleol wedi cyflwyno 
apwyntiadau yn ystod y pandemig a'u bod wedi parhau â'r dull hwn gan ei fod wedi profi'n 
effeithiol.  

 
9. COM30 

 
Gwnaeth yr Aelodau sylwadau ar y penderfyniad i ddychwelyd i gerbydau gwastraff diesel a 
chytunwyd bod hwn yn arbediad addas o ystyried barn yr Aelodau nad oedd digon o 
dystiolaeth bod tanwydd Olew Llysiau wedi'i Drin â Dŵr (HVO) yn cynnig effeithlonrwydd 
tanwydd neu ansawdd aer gwell nac unrhyw fanteision i fusnesau lleol.  Yng ngoleuni'r sefyllfa 
ariannol bresennol a'r sefyllfa a ragwelir yn y dyfodol a wynebir gan yr Awdurdod, 
argymhellodd y Pwyllgor na ddylid mynd ar drywydd unrhyw ‘arloesi gwyrdd’ wrth symud 
ymlaen oni bai ei fod naill ai'n cyfrannu at arbedion refeniw, yn cynnig budd uniongyrchol a 
diriaethol i drigolion, neu'n galluogi effeithlonrwydd canlyniadol mewn mannau eraill yng 
nghyllideb y Cyngor. 

 
Ceisiadau am Wybodaeth Ychwanegol 
 
Yn gysylltiedig â COM3 a COM4, gofynnodd y Pwyllgor iddynt gael yr ystadegau ar gyfer tipio 
anghyfreithlon yn y fwrdeistref sirol am y tair blynedd diwethaf. 
 
Yn gysylltiedig â COM13 a'r toriad sylweddol i Raglen yr Argyfwng Hinsawdd, gofynnodd y 
Pwyllgor am fanylion ynghylch pa grantiau allanol a chyllid yr oedd yr Awdurdod yn eu cael ar hyn 
o bryd ar gyfer hyn a lle y gallai edrych am fwy er mwyn cyflawni ei dargedau. 
 

Dyddiad y Gwnaed y 
Penderfyniad 
 

22 Ionawr 2024 

P
age 16



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 3 - DYDD LLUN, 22 IONAWR 2024 

 

 
 
 
 

62. Eitemau Brys 
 

 

Penderfyniad a Wnaed 
 

Dim  

Dyddiad y Gwnaed y 
Penderfyniad 
 

22 Ionawr 2024 

 
 
 
I arsylwi dadl bellach a gynhaliwyd ar yr eitemau uchod, cliciwch ar y ddolen hon ar gyfer Rhan Un, y ddolen hon ar gyfer Rhan Dau, a’r ddolen hon ar 
gyfer Rhan Tri.  
  
Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 8.08pm 
 

P
age 17

https://youtu.be/dZdg4_NdA_Q
https://youtu.be/GPV8LOiD8TI
https://youtu.be/gH1PoE_Lx68


T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
Meeting of:  

 
SUBJECT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 3 

 

 
Date of Meeting:  

 
19 MARCH 2024 

 

 
Report Title:  

 
FUTURE WASTE SERVICE OPTIONS 

 

 
Report Owner / 
Corporate Director:  

 

 
CORPORATE DIRECTOR COMMUNITIES 

Responsible 
Officer:  

JENNIFER SPARROW – CLEANER STREETS AND WASTE 
CONTRACT MANAGER 

 

Policy Framework 
and Procedure 
Rules:  

There is no impact on the policy framework or procedure 
rules. 

Executive 
Summary:  
 

To share the findings of the commissioned report on future 
waste options. 

 
1. Purpose of Report  
 

 

1.1 The purpose of the report is to share the findings of the commissioned report from 

Eunomia on future recycling and waste options from April 2026, following the two-

year contract with Plan B Management Solutions which ends 31st March 2026. 

 

1.2 It will allow Scrutiny members the opportunity to understand the advantages and 

disadvantages of three service delivery methods that is:- 

 

• Bring the waste services in-house 

• Transfer the waste collection into Local Authority Trading Company (LATco)  

• Re-procurement of a waste services contract 

 

And for Scrutiny to offer their recommendations, in regard to the above, for the 

consideration of Cabinet, before any decision is made. 

 

1.3 It is important to note that the report will not look at the details of the future service 

delivery, including items such as frequency of collection or materials collected.  This 

is the next stage of the waste services workflow and will be brought to Scrutiny for 

discussion and consideration at a date later this year. 

2. Background  
 
2.1 The council has outsourced its recycling and waste contract to a commercial 

contractor since 2003. The contract has been renewed every 7 years and the Council 

has had three contractors fulfil that service. The current outsourced waste contract 

was awarded to Kier Environmental Services in April 2017. This contract will end at 

Page 19

Agenda Item 4



the end of March 2024 and will be replaced by an interim contract for a period of two 

years, approved by Cabinet in June 2022.  This will be from the 1st of April 2024 to 

31st March 2026. 

 

2.2 The reasons for the short-term duration of the interim contract, was twofold: - 

 

• The interim contract would allow time for the development of the Ultra Low 

Emission Vehicles (ULEV) marketplace and considered future decisions to be 

made with regards to decarbonisation and the selection of future vehicle 

technology from 2026. 

 

• The contract would allow time for Welsh Government future recycling targets and 

linked forthcoming relevant legislation to be published, thus informing service 

models and, in turn, fleet configuration from 2026. 

 

2.3 Following a procurement exercise, “Plan B Management Solutions” was appointed to 

provide the interim recycling and waste service from 1st April 2024 to 31st March 2026. 

2.4  In order to ensure continuity of service post 2026 when the Plan B contract ends, 

decisions are required on how the Council will provide the waste service in the future.  

This may be done via a re-procured service, by bringing the waste services back in-

house or the establishment of a Council owned arm’s length company or LATco.  This 

is the subject of this Scrutiny Report. Shortly after that, a decision will also be required 

on the model of service to be provided, this will determine items such as frequency 

of collections and the materials to be collected. This is the next stage of the waste 

services workflow and will be brought to Scrutiny Committee for discussion and 

consideration at a date later this year. 

 

2.5 Prior to commissioning the Eunomia report, consideration was given as to whether to 

investigate collaborative working arrangements.  However, this was explored at 

length previously and there was with limited benefit or interest from neighbouring 

authorities being identified. This is because of no perceived cost savings or 

efficiencies and the neighbouring local authorities undertaking very different 

collection methodology. It was decided, therefore, that this would not be included in 

the Eunomia commission, although this does not preclude this being explored further 

in the future. 

  

3. Current situation/ proposal  
 

3.1 Eunomia Research & Consulting Ltd (Eunomia) was commissioned by the Council to 

undertake a detailed qualitative risk assessment and financial modelling of the 

commissioning options for future waste collection service delivery.  The report, 

included as Appendix A, examines the comparative cost and key risks and 

opportunities associated with each of the future commissioning options.  

3.2 The three options were assessed from a financial and qualitative perspective and the 

findings are detailed in full in the attached report.   In summary the report found the 

following: - 

Page 20



 RISK ASSESSMEMT OF FUTURE OPTIONS 

3.3 Each of the three future commissioning options that the Council is considering were 

evaluated qualitatively from a risk perspective. This qualitative assessment involved 

assessing each of the available future commissioning options against certain 

criterion. This included financial and commercial risk, operational risk, market 

conditions implementation risk, service quality and control and ability to change.  The 

criterion being assessed, and their weightings, were agreed with the Council and are 

outlined in full in section Error! Reference source not found. of the Eunomia report.  

3.4 In summary, the analysis from a qualitative perspective is that the re-procurement 

route received the highest score and was ranked first in terms of mitigating risk. Whilst 

both the In-house option and LATco receiving very similar scores, came second and 

third ranked with a score of 58% and 56% respectively. The re-procurement option 

does need careful consideration due to the very limited window in which the contract 

can be re-procured prior to the 2026 expiry date. If preferred this re-procurement 

activity would need to commence with some expediency. 

• In House Option    Scored 58% and is ranked 2nd. 

• LATCo Option   Scored 56% and is ranked 3rd. 

• Re-Procurement Option Scored 66% and is ranked 1st. 

FINANCIAL MODELLING 

 3.5 The three options were also assessed from a financial perspective. The results of the 

cost modelling are presented in the report as total annual costs. The baseline used 

for the assessment, £7.19m, reflects the 2022/2023 budget position. The detail of this 

is outlined in section 3.1.2 of the report but in summary, with regards to the financial 

modelling, the LATCo option is the cheapest of the three, though the re-procurement 

option is only marginally more expensive. The annual cost of bringing the provision 

in house is the most expensive by an additional £340K per annum. 

• In House Option   Modelled Annual Cost of £9.37m, ranked 3rd. 

• LATCo Option   Modelled Annual Cost of £9.02m, ranked 1st. 

• Re-Procurement Option Modelled Annual Cost of £9.03, ranked 2nd. 

3.6 It is worth noting that indexation has been applied to the future options to account for 

a start date in 2026/27, hence why all the options have significantly higher costs than 

the Baseline which reflects 2022/23 costs. 

3.7 Also, the profit margin applied to the re-procurement option in the model was set at 

12%, which is higher than the current contractor receives at 8%.  This could be 

subject to fluctuation, which may have a betterment impact on the costs of this option.  

 

 

Page 21



TRANSITION AND MOBILISATION COSTS 

3.8 The report also outlines the costs of transitioning and mobilisation of each of the three 

options.  That is, the work that is required to be undertaken to bring the option forward.  

This is detailed in section 3.1.3 of the report and includes items such as legal support, 

procurement technical support, compliance, mandatory training, digital platforms, or 

equipment and then the costs associated with the Depot and any workforce 

onboarding.   

3.9 In summary, it found that the costs associated with transitioning into a LATCo are the 

highest at £0.97m. In this option a new entity is being created which will require a 

significant amount of legal support and other set-up costs such as development of a 

business plan and branding. Both the in-house and LATCo options include 

mobilisation costs that do not apply to the re-procurement option, such as terms and 

conditions legal support, compliance work and purchase of applications. Those 

options also require a high level of resources ahead of the start of the new service 

delivery to support the transition, including resources for the onboarding of the 

workforce. Re-procurement mobilisation costs include legal and technical support for 

the re-procurement process, as well as other initial digital and depot costs that apply 

to all options.  

• In House Option   T&M Costs of 765K ranked 2nd. 

• LATCo Option   T&M Costs of 971K ranked 3rd.  

• Re-Procurement Option T&M Costs of 529K ranked 1st.  

3.10 It is worth noting that for the in-house and LATCo options these would be one off 

costs (assuming that there is no other service delivery change in the future), however 

for the re-procurement, these costs would be incurred every eight years for every 

new procurement.  

3.11 The Scrutiny Committee are asked to look at the analysis of the three options in the 

report at Appendix 1, and to offer their recommendations, regarding the above, for 

the consideration of Cabinet. 

4.0 Equality implications (including Socio-economic Duty and Welsh Language) 
 
4.1 The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic duty 

and the impact on the use of the Welsh Language have been considered in the 

preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales the Council must consider the 

impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the review of policies, 

strategies, services, and functions. This is an information report; therefore, it is not 

necessary to carry out an Equality Impact assessment in the production of this report. 

It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable equality impacts 

because of this report.  

 

 

 

Page 22



5. Well-being of Future Generations implications and connection to Corporate 
Well-being Objectives 

 
5.1 The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of this 

report. It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable impacts upon 

the achievement of well-being goals/objectives, as a result of this report. 

 
6. Climate Change Implications  
 
6.1 There are no Climate Change Implications from this report. 
 

7. Safeguarding and Corporate Parent Implications 
 
7.1 There are no safeguarding or corporate parent implications arising from this report. 
 
8.  Financial Implications  
 
8.1 Whilst the report explores financial advantages and disadvantages of the various 

methods of waste service provision a decision in this regard is not the purpose of this 

Scrutiny report, therefore there are no direct financial implications. 

 
9. Recommendation 

 
9.1 It is recommended that the Committee consider the contents of the report provided 

by Eunomia on the three options for delivering the Waste Services post 2026 and 

provide comments for consideration by Cabinet, prior to any decision being made.  

 
 
 
Background documents 
 

• Cabinet Report on interim waste collection services contract 2024 to 2026 – 19th September 2023 

• Cabinet Report on recycling and waste service post 2024 – 14th June 2022 

 

 

 

Page 23



 

 

Page 24



Commissioning 

Options 
 

Bridgend County Borough 

Council 

Prepared March 2024 

 

 

Page 25



 

Eunomia has prepared this report with due care and thoroughness, and in accordance with industry best practice. In preparing this report, Eunomia may have relied upon, 

and presumed accurate, information provided by the client and other sources. Except as otherwise stated in the report, Eunomia does not verify the accuracy or 

completeness of any such information. If the information is determined, following publication, to be obsolete, false, inaccurate or incomplete then it is possible that our 

observations and conclusions, as expressed in this report, may change. To avoid any doubt, Eunomia makes no warranty or guarantee (further to this disclaimer statement), 

whether expressed or implied, as to the content of this report, to the extent permitted by law. 

Report For 

Bridgend County Borough Council 

Project Team 

Kate Briggs 

Manon Bataille 

James McMahon 

Claire Walker 

 

 

 

 

Approved By 

 

James McMahon 

(Project Director) 

Acknowledgements 

Our thanks to Bridgend County Borough Council 

for their support and provision of key information, 

as well as the facilitation of meetings with 

members. In particular, our thanks to Jen 

Sparrow and Zak Shell.  

Eunomia Research & Consulting Ltd 

37 Queen Square 

Bristol 

BS1 4QS 

United Kingdom 

Tel  +44 (0)117 9172250 

Fax  +44 (0)8717 142942 

Web  www.eunomia.co.uk

Page 26



 

3  |  Commissioning Options Report 

Executive Summary 

E1 Overview 
Bridgend County Borough Council (Bridgend CBC) currently runs an outsourced waste collection service. 

This service is currently operated by Kier, though the provider will switch to Plan B as of April 2024. The 

waste collection and cleansing services are the only function any authority delivers which every resident 

and visitor to the borough experiences daily. Therefore, the quality of these services and the value for 

money they represent to any Council is of paramount importance. Given this importance, the Council is 

currently considering which future commissioning options are most suitable going forwards for the waste 

service in particular (as street cleansing services are already operated in-house).  

 

Eunomia Research & Consulting Ltd (Eunomia) was commissioned by Bridgend CBC to undertake a 

detailed qualitative risk assessment and financial modelling of the commissioning options for future waste 

collection service delivery. As such, this report examines the comparative cost and key risks and 

opportunities associated with each of the future commissioning options. The future commissioning 

options being assessed are as follows:  

• Option A: Bring the waste collection service in-house. 

• Option B: Transfer the waste collection into a Local Authority Trading Company (LATCo). 

• Option C: Re-procure the waste services via a private sector contractor.   

E2 Risk Assessment of Future Commissioning Options 

Each of the three future commissioning options that Bridgend CBC is considering were evaluated 

qualitatively from a risk perspective.  

This qualitative assessment involved assessing each of the available future commissioning options against 

certain criterion. The criterion being assessed, and their weightings, were agreed with Bridgend CBC and 

are outlined in section 2.1. When assessing each future commissioning option against the seven criteria, 

their score for each element was based upon a clear evaluation scheme to ensure transparency in how 

each option was assessed (provided in Appendix A.1.0). This score was then multiplied by the agreed 

weighting to give a weighted score, which was then added together with the other weighted scores to 

give a total for that service delivery option.  The detailed evaluation framework model can be seen in 

Appendix  A.2.0. 

Th commissioning options analysis has identified that from a qualitative perspective, the commissioning 

option which receives the highest score is that of the re-procurement route, with both the LATCo and In-

house option receiving very similar scores, that of 56% and 58% respectively. The re-procurement option 

however needs careful consideration due to the very limited window in which the contract can be re-

procured prior to the 2026 expiry date (assuming no extensions are taken).  

  

Page 27



 

4  |  Commissioning Options Report 

Table 1-1: Summary of Qualitative Commissioning Options Assessment 

Criteria Weighting Option A – In-

House 

Option B – LATCo Option C – Re-

procurement 

Capacity and 

Capability 
10.0% 6.0% 4.0% 10.0% 

Financial and 

Commercial Risk 
20.0% 4.0% 8.0% 16.0% 

Market 

Conditions 
10.0% 10.0% 10.0% 4.0% 

Operational Risk 15.0% 6.0% 6.0% 12.0% 

Implementation 

Risk 
15.0% 6.0% 6.0% 6.0% 

Control and 

Ability to Change 
20.0% 20.0% 16.0% 12.0% 

Service Quality 10.0% 6.0% 6.0% 6.0% 

Total Score  58.0% 56.0% 66.0% 

Rank  2 3 1 

E2.1 Key risks 

Capacity and Capability 

The main risk within this criterion is the recruitment required for some of the more specialist or senior roles, 

which would be unlikely to transfer over in the in-house or LATCo options. These roles can be difficult to fill 

based on the skills required. The contractor will have significant expertise already and so this is not seen 

as a risk in the re-procurement option.  

Financial and Commercial Risk  

The main financial and commercial risk for the in-house option relates to the Local Government Pension 

Scheme as it is a significant financial liability that the council will have to take on. In both the in-house 

and LATCo options, the financial risks associated with staff shortages, sickness, vehicle damage, rising fuel 

Page 28



 

5  |  Commissioning Options Report 

costs are ultimately shifted to the council, given the direct and arm’s length ownership of the service for 

the in-house and LATCo options respectively.  

Market Conditions 

The in-house and LATCo options do not require any testing with the market, which is why they are seen to 

not pose a risk for this element. For the re-procurement option, the main risk is the timeline. The contract 

with Kier is coming to an end in March 2024 and Plan B have been awarded a 2-year contract, meaning 

Bridgend CBC will need to re-procure by March 2026. This is an extremely tight timeline to go through the 

procurement procedure (assumed to be Competitive Dialogue due to the market’s preference for a 

procure with an element of negotiation) and leaves minimal time for mobilisation (estimated to be ~3 

months). Upon speaking to contractors as part of this process, this was flagged as a significant risk. 

Operational Risk 

For both the in-house and LATCo options, the operational risk fundamentally shifts to Bridgend CBC. 

Furthermore, these options are also subject to a key operational risk relating to IT infrastructure 

requirements. The key risk in re-procurement is associated with a potential change in contractors, 

however the procurement process is expected to mitigate this risk to some extent. 

Implementation Risk 

The key risk for the in-house and LATCo options are very similar, with there being risks relating to the TUPE 

of staff and the requirement to procure and implement IT systems for the day one operation of the 

service. The main risk in the re-procurement option relates to the timeline and the short mobilisation 

period.  

Control and Ability to Change 

The re-procurement is seen as the least flexible option of the three as the Council will have to negotiate 

any changes of the contract with the contractor, and accordingly negotiate any costs incurred as a 

result of the changes. There will still be an element of this in the LATCo option as the relationship between 

the Council and LATCo will still be governed by a contract, however there will be increased ability to 

enact change compared to an external contractor. The in-house option is seen as the most flexible 

option of the three.  

Service Quality 

It is not possible to confidently say that under these options the quality of the services delivered would be 

impacted. This is because there is likely to be no difference to staff training, or the level of management 

or supervision. What may change in these options is the focus of the service on this, however, these are 

large and complex operational services and measuring improvement in service quality with the same 

resource base as currently will be difficult.   

 

E3 Financial Modelling 

The three options were also assessed from a financial perspective. The results of the cost modelling are 

presented as total annual costs. The baseline reflects the 2022/2023 budget position. The changes in 

each of the three future options are detailed below: 

• In-House: in this option, there is a significant change in the terms and conditions of employment, 

including salary increases (for some roles only) and increased employer pension contributions. In 

addition to this there is a change in management structure required which impacts costs, these are 

Page 29



 

6  |  Commissioning Options Report 

somewhat offset by the absence of a margin being included. There are also additional costs needed 

for the purchase of digital applications.  

• LATCo: in this option there are no changes to the terms and conditions of employment, as staff will 

transfer across on TUPE terms and the working assumption is that the LATCo would operate with the 

same terms and conditions as the current contractor. As with the in-house option, there is a change to 

the management structure (for example the recruitment of a Managing Director and Operations 

Director) and a 3% margin has also been built in as contingency (which is not accounted for in the in-

house option). The additional costs needed for the purchase of digital applications are also included.  

• Re-procurement: as TUPE applies, the terms and conditions of employment are maintained in this 

option. There are no changes to the management structure compared to the baseline, nor are there 

added costs for the purchasing of digital applications. There is a 12% margin and overheads included, 

which is higher than what the current contractor achieves.  

The breakdown of results can be seen in Table 1-2.  

Table 1-2: Modelled Annual Costs for Each Option 

Cost Centre Baseline 22/23 Re-procurement In-house LATCo  

Margin and 

Overheads 
£1.25m £1.79m £1.26m £1.58m 

Other Costs £1.32m £1.43m £1.52m £1.52m 

Material Sales & 

Waste Disposal 
-£0.65m -£0.78m -£0.78m -£0.78m 

Vehicles and 

Equipment 
£1.98m £2.55m £2.65m £2.65m 

Frontline Staff £3.29m £4.04m £4.72m £4.04m 

Total £7.19m £9.03m £9.37m £9.02m 

 

E4 Summary 

In summary, the analysis shows that from a qualitative perspective, the re-procurement option is the most 

favourable, followed by the in-house and LATCo options respectively. However, the timeline for the re-

procurement option is a real risk (as outlined in section 2.4.3) and could deter market operators from 

engaging in a procurement exercise should it not afford sufficient time for them to robustly bid, and also 

mobilise, should they win the contract. Extending the current contract with Plan B may help to mitigate 

this risk, alternatively the council can seek to begin a re-procurement as soon as possible to afford the 

procurement and mobilisation processes as long as possible. It would be vital to engage with the market 

on these timelines to understand if this would be feasible should Bridgend CBC take this option forwards.  

Page 30



 

7  |  Commissioning Options Report 

With regards to the financial modelling, the LATCo option is the cheapest of the three, though the re-

procurement option is only marginally more expensive (in the region of ~£0.01m per annum). Given this 

very slight variation, it is difficult to say with certainty which option would be preferable from a financial 

perspective and ultimately will come down to the council’s affordability considerations, as well as 

political drivers and appetite towards risk management.  

When the qualitative and financial elements are taken together, Eunomia would recommend that 

Bridgend CBC considers either the re-procurement or LATCo options going forward, with the re-

procurement option appearing to be the most favourable should the timeline for a future procurement 

be feasible and practicable.  

 

 

Page 31



 

8  |  Commissioning Options Report 

Table of Contents 

Executive Summary ................................................................................................................................................. 3 

1.0 Introduction ....................................................................................................................................................... 10 

2.0 Risk Assessment of Future Commissioning Options ..................................................................................... 11 

2.1 Risk Assessment Overview ........................................................................................................................... 11 

2.2 Overview of the Commissioning Options Assessed.................................................................................. 12 

2.2.1 In House Service Delivery ..................................................................................................................... 12 

2.2.2 Local Authority Trading Company (LATCo) ....................................................................................... 13 

2.2.3 Outsourcing Services ............................................................................................................................ 13 

2.3 Summary of Risk Assessment Results ........................................................................................................... 15 

2.4 Risk Assessment Scores ................................................................................................................................. 16 

2.4.1 Capability and Capacity ..................................................................................................................... 16 

2.4.2 Financial and Commercial Risk ........................................................................................................... 17 

2.4.3 Market Conditions ................................................................................................................................. 18 

2.4.4 Operational Risk .................................................................................................................................... 25 

2.4.5 Implementation Risk .............................................................................................................................. 26 

2.4.6 Control and Ability to Change ............................................................................................................ 27 

2.4.7 Service Quality ....................................................................................................................................... 28 

3.0 Financial Modelling.......................................................................................................................................... 29 

3.1.1 Approach to Financial Modelling ....................................................................................................... 29 

3.1.2 Cost Modelling Results .......................................................................................................................... 29 

3.1.3 Transition/ Mobilisation Costs ............................................................................................................... 34 

4.0 Conclusion ........................................................................................................................................................ 34 

4.1 Risk Assessment of Future Commissioning Options ................................................................................... 34 

4.2 Financial Modelling ...................................................................................................................................... 35 

4.3 Summary ........................................................................................................................................................ 36 

Appendices ............................................................................................................................................................ 37 

A.1.0 Evaluation Scoring Guidance ..................................................................................................................... 38 

Page 32



 

9  |  Commissioning Options Report 

A.2.0 Commissioning Options Evaluation Model ............................................................................................... 41 

A.3.0 Indicative High-Level Timelines and Market Analysis.............................................................................. 41 

 

 

Page 33



 

10  |  Commissioning Options Report 

1.0 Introduction 

Bridgend County Borough Council (Bridgend CBC) currently run an outsourced waste collection 

service, covering both waste collection and community recycling centre services. This service is 

currently operated by Kier, though the provider will switch to Plan B as of April 2024. The authority is 

currently considering which future potential waste collection methodologies are most suitable 

going forwards. Eunomia Research & Consulting Ltd (Eunomia) was commissioned by Bridgend 

CBC to undertake a detailed qualitative risk assessment and financial modelling of the 

commissioning options for future service delivery. As such, this report examines the comparative 

cost and key risks and opportunities associated with each of the commissioning options.  

The report is broken into the following sections:  

• Section 2.0 outlines the qualitative assessment undertaken for each of the commissioning 

options and clearly identifies the rationale for each respective score. 

• Section 3.0 outlines the financial modelling undertaken for each of the commissioning 

options.  

• Section 4.0 summarises all elements of the work completed as part of this project. 

  

Page 34



 

11  |  Commissioning Options Report 

2.0 Risk Assessment of Future Commissioning 

Options 

2.1 Risk Assessment Overview 

Waste, recycling and street cleansing services are the only function any authority delivers which 

every resident and visitor to the borough experiences daily. Therefore, the quality of these services 

and the value for money they represent to any Council is of paramount importance. As part of this 

project Eunomia has undertaken a risk-based evaluation of the future service commissioning 

options being considered by Bridgend for the waste service in particular (street cleansing services 

are already operated in-house). These are: 

• Option A: Bring the waste collection service in-house. 

• Option B: Transfer the waste collection service into a Local Authority Trading Company 

(LATCo). 

• Option C: Re-procure the waste service via a private sector contractor.   

Eunomia’s approach to the risk assessment involved assessing each of the commissioning options 

against an agreed set of criterion. The criterion selected as the basis for the evaluation are based 

upon Eunomia’s experience of the key factors which impact decision making regarding services of 

this type and scale. The criterion being assessed, and their weightings, were agreed with Bridgend 

CBC and are outlined in Table 2-1.  

Table 2-1: Assessment Criteria Weighting 

Primary 

Criteria 

Secondary Criteria Assessment Question  Weighting 

Quality  Capacity and Capability Does the entity delivering the service 

have the capacity/capability to do so 

to a high standard? Can this be 

acquired? 

10.0% 

Financial and Commercial Risk Does the option pose an increased 

financial risk to the authority? 

20.0% 

Market Conditions Are the market conditions supporting 

this option? 

10.0% 

Operational Risk Does the option pose an increased 

operational risk of failure to the 

authority? 

15.0% 

Page 35



 

12  |  Commissioning Options Report 

Primary 

Criteria 

Secondary Criteria Assessment Question  Weighting 

Implementation Risk Does the option present 

implementation risk? 

15.0% 

Control and Ability to Change Does the option allow Bridgend CBC 

to control and develop services? 

20.0% 

Service Quality Does the option improve the quality 

of service offered to residents? 

10.0% 

    Total Score 100.0% 

When assessing each commissioning option against the seven criteria, their score for each element 

was based upon a clear evaluation scheme to ensure transparency in how each option was 

assessed (provided in Appendix A.1.0). This score was then multiplied by the agreed weighting to 

give a weighted score, which was then added together with the other weighted scores to give a 

total for that option.  The detailed evaluation framework model can be seen in Appendix  A.2.0. 

2.2 Overview of the Commissioning Options 

Assessed 

The following section of the report summarises each of the commissioning options explored in more 

detail, to provide a strategic context to the results of the risk assessment.  

2.2.1 In House Service Delivery  

This option represents a significant change to Bridgend CBC. Within this option, all staff are 

employed directly by the Council and the responsibility for service delivery and the quality of the 

service provided also sits directly with the Council. The councils cleansing service is currently in-

house. 

One of the key advantages of an in-house service over the other options is the level of control the 

Council has over the service and how it is delivered. Typically, in-house services are inherently more 

flexible, as the Council is not constrained by the terms of a contract with a third party.  

The in-house service option also avoids the cost of meeting a contractor’s corporate overhead and 

profit margin cost, albeit this saving is countered by the additional staff costs incurred in an in-house 

model, the main one being the public sector pension costs.  

The main negative that stems from this option is that Bridgend CBC will take on the Local 

Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) liabilities, which will represent a significant financial burden 

compared to the existing service. Additionally, in this option all risk will transfer to the council (away 

from the contractor) which represents a significant shift from the current service model.   

Page 36



 

13  |  Commissioning Options Report 

2.2.2 Local Authority Trading Company (LATCo) 

Delivering services using a LATCo model would be a significant change from the current approach 

of delivering an outsourced service.  

Over recent years, LATCos have becoming a more popular vehicle for providing local authority 

services. With regards to waste and recycling services, these have been established both at the 

end of existing contract terms (LB Hounslow, LB Redbridge) and following early contract exit (Bristol 

Waste Company, Cheshire West Recycling, North Somerset Environment Company). A LATCo is an 

independent legal entity which is wholly owned and ultimately controlled by one or more 

shareholding local authorities. For this project we have assumed that the LATCo would be wholly 

owned by Bridgend CBC. The principal benefits of adopting this option include the ability to: 

• Operate in a more culturally distinct way than many in-house services are able to do, 

perhaps including being more commercially driven and structured. 

• Deliver services more flexibly compared to a contracted-out service. 

• Offer workers membership of a lower-cost pension scheme, as opposed to the LGPS. 

The legal framework under which LATCos can be established was primarily based on case law, but 

this has changed with the introduction of the Public Contract Regulations 2015, with updates 

included in the Procurement Act 2023 (which achieved royal assent in October 2023). This 

legislation clarifies the legal aspects of creating and managing a LATCo and provides important 

guidance on how to comply with the requirements of the law. Key elements to consider include:  

• If Bridgend CBC were to move to this model, staff currently employed by the contractor 

would transfer to the LATCo in compliance with the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of 

Employment) Regulations 2006 (TUPE). This would mean all transferring staff retaining their 

current terms and conditions of employment. The LATCo is not however obliged to offer 

these to new staff and could, over time, significantly reduce the cost of service delivery as 

for example there is no legal requirement to pay into the LGPS.  

• As with the in-house service delivery model, by delivering services via a LATCo, the Council 

as the shareholder ultimately assumes the full risk of any service failures (even though the 

service is delivered by an arm’s length company). This also includes any staff or 

management disputes, as well as commercial risk related to any increase in operational 

costs.  

• This option also suffers the risk around recruiting suitably skilled individuals to act in the role of 

Managing Director and Operations Director.  

• Although LATCos are primarily designed to provide services to the authority/authorities that 

own it, this does not preclude them from making a profit from providing commercial 

services to third party customers. This is encouraged to ensure the financial viability of the 

organisation. There are limitations on the proportion of revenue that a LATCo can obtain 

through third-party trading, and this should be monitored to ensure compliance with the 

legal framework. Furthermore, the LATCo must ensure that any services provided to third-

party customers are of the same high standard as those provided to the authority. 

2.2.3  Outsourcing Services 

As Bridgend CBC’s current waste service is outsourced, tendering this service does not represent a 

significant change in service delivery option for the authority. 

The current marketplace for collections contracts is constrained to six main bidders and there is a 

substantial number of contracts being re-tendered across the next three years. It is worth noting 

that the six main bidders will actually be shrinking in 2024 as FCC are in the process of acquiring 

Urbaser. Therefore, if this is an option Bridgend CBC would like to move forward with, we would 

Page 37



 

14  |  Commissioning Options Report 

recommend a robust procurement strategy is developed to manage these risks. Furthermore, 

engagement with the market operators will be vital to ensure their interest and participation in any 

future procurement.   

It should be noted that within this option, as with the LATCo, all staff employed by Plan B (as of April 

2024) would transfer to the new operator in compliance with the Transfer of Undertakings 

(Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006 (TUPE). 

The key advantage to outsourcing services is the transfer of financial and operational risk. Assuming 

the contract and associated payment and performance mechanism are well designed, this option 

provides relative certainty of service cost for the life of the contract. Furthermore, open competition 

can ensure best value for the commissioning process; transparency in the process also allows for 

informed decision-making and trust from stakeholders. This can result in better outcomes for all 

parties involved. 

A disadvantage to this option is that if Bridgend CBC were to want any changes made to the 

service, there will have to be a negotiation with the contractor. This then opens the council up to 

negotiations with the contractor on the contract cost as a result. 

Outsourcing (if done well) enables access to specialist resources and knowledge, as well as 

economies of scale that can lead to cost savings, increased market confidence and improved 

delivery of services. It can also offer increased resilience, flexibility, and innovation. However, it is 

important to consider the risks and challenges associated with the approach, such as legal and 

financial obligations, and ensuring effective contractual management. 

A factor in many outsourced contracts awarded over the last five to ten years is the winning bidder 

under-estimating the resources that are required to deliver the services to the required specification 

(especially so within output-based contracts). This is a risk that can be mitigated to some extent 

through the procurement process, but ultimately the resource risk is the contractors. Whilst the 

contracting authorities who have dealt with this have the right to make financial deductions for 

defaults and the right to terminate for significant and sustained poor performance, in practice, the 

issue tends to be focussed on whether contracting authorities are realistically in a position to act on 

the termination clauses and whether the specification and deduction method is clear enough to 

avoid dispute. 

Page 38



 

15  |  Commissioning Options Report 

2.3 Summary of Risk Assessment Results 

The results of the risk evaluation and associated ranking of each option is outlined in Table 2-2.  

Table 2-2: Risk Assessment Summary

Primary 

Criteria
Secondary Criteria Assessment Question Weighting Score Awarded

Weighted 

Score
Score Awarded

Weighted 

Score
Score Awarded

Weighted 

Score

Capacity and Capability

Does the entity delivering the service 

have the capacity/capability to do so 

to a high standard? Can this be 

acquired?

10.0% 3 6.0% 2 4.0% 5 10.0%

Financial and Commercial Risk
Does the option pose an increased 

financial risk to the authority?
20.0% 1 4.0% 2 8.0% 4 16.0%

Market Conditions
Are the market conditions supporting 

this option?
10.0% 5 10.0% 5 10.0% 2 4.0%

Operational Risk

Does the option pose an increased 

operational risk of failure to the 

authority?

15.0% 2 6.0% 2 6.0% 4 12.0%

Implementation Risk
Does the option present 

implementation risk?
15.0% 2 6.0% 2 6.0% 2 6.0%

Control and Ability to Change

Does the option allow Bridgend County 

Borough Council to control and 

develop services?

20.0% 5 20.0% 4 16.0% 3 12.0%

Service Quality
Does the option improve the quality of 

service offered to residents?
10.0% 3 6.0% 3 6.0% 3 6.0%

Total Score 100.0% 58.0% 56.0% 66.0%

Rank TRUE 2 3 1

Quality 

Option A - Bring service In-

House
Option B - LATCo

Option C - Re-

procurement

P
age 39



 

16  |  Commissioning Options Report 

2.4 Risk Assessment Scores 
The following sections of this report detail the scores allocated for each option under each criterion 

within the evaluation framework model and provides a rationale for Eunomia’s assessment of each 

option.  

2.4.1 Capability and Capacity 
Table 2-3 provides a summary of the evaluation scoring for each option when considering the 

criteria of capability and capacity. A detailed rationale for this evaluation can be found below 

Table 2-3. 

Table 2-3: Options Evaluation – Capability and Capacity 

Criteria:  Capability and Capacity Weighting:  10% 

Option Score Description 

A 3 Bring service in-house 

B 2 Bringing the waste service into a LATCo 

C 5 Re-procurement of the waste service 

 

When assessing the capacity and capability of the authority or another operator to deliver each 

option, we have considered the following key questions: 

• Is there the necessary capacity and capability within the Council or an outsourced waste 

contractor in the re-procurement option to deliver and manage these services?  

• Will the transferring staff have the necessary capability, skills, and experience to deliver the 

service and is there a risk they will not transfer? 

• If the capability or capacity does not exist, can the organisation recruit this? If so, how is easy is 

this to do and the time to recruit an issue? 

Option A receives a score of 3, as whilst additional recruitment will be required to facilitate this 

commissioning option, Bridgend CBC will benefit from the street cleansing service already being in-

house. Option A poses less of a risk than Option B as a result. As street cleansing is already in-house, 

it is assumed that suitably senior officers (Head of Service level as a minimum) and a dedicated 

Transport Manager will be in place and can oversee both waste and street cleansing services. 

However, given the increase in responsibility, additional support may need to be sought and 

recruited to support these roles. As the street cleansing operations are currently in-house, the 

council further benefits as support functions such as IT, HR, and Health and Safety can be expected 

to also support the waste service – though, as before for the more senior roles, additional support 

(and resulting requirement) may be required. 

With regards to Option B, the council does not have the specialist capability or capacity internally 

to manage the waste service and would require substantial recruitment to facilitate this approach. 

As a result, this option receives a score of a 2. Under this option we have assumed that the LATCo 

will have both a Managing Director and Operations Director. These posts would need to be in 

place at the beginning of the mobilisation period as it is likely that senior Plan B staff would not 

transfer. This poses a substantial risk to the authority. For these two positions (Managing Director and 

Operations Director), the skills and experience required to fulfil these roles are not common and the 

positions will be challenging to recruit into, though ultimately this is felt to be achievable within the 

Page 40



 

17  |  Commissioning Options Report 

timeframes. Furthermore, the LATCo may be required to recruit into support roles such as HR, IT and 

Health and Safety – though such services could be purchased from the council directly to avoid 

the need to recruit.  

Option C has been given a score of 5 as an incoming contractor will have the capacity and 

capability within the organisation and transferring staff to manage the services in-scope. This would 

also be tested through the procurement process. As such, there are no concerns around the 

capability and capacity in this option.  

It is important to recognise the requirement to manage the sale of materials under the contract. 

This would pose a risk in particular to Options A and B should the relevant staff not TUPE from Plan B. 

In this assessment, we have assumed that such specialist staff would TUPE and as such have not 

factored that into the scores given. With regards to Option C, it is assumed that the market 

operators have the relevant capability and capacity to manage this contract function.  

 

2.4.2 Financial and Commercial Risk 
Table 2-4 provides a summary of the evaluation scoring for each option when considering the 

criteria of financial and commercial risk. A detailed rationale for this evaluation can be found 

below Table 2-4. 

Table 2-4: Options Evaluation – Financial and Commercial Risk 

Criteria:  Financial and Commercial 

Risk 

Weighting:  20% 

Option Score Description 

A 1 Bring service in-house 

B 2 Bringing the waste service into a LATCo 

C 4 Re-procurement of the waste service 

When assessing the financial and commercial risks for the relevant options, we have considered the 

following key questions:  

• What financial and commercial risks would be incurred by the authority as a result of this 

option?  

• What is the severity of the financial and commercial risks faced by the authority under each 

option and are the risks acceptable? 

Option A has been given a score of 1 and it is seen as posing a high probability of unacceptable 

financial risk to the council. This is because in this option all the financial responsibility and 

associated risks will be transferred directly to the council. This is a substantial shift in Bridgend’s 

financial risk position, and includes issues such as staff shortages, sickness, vehicle damage, rising 

fuel costs and the requirement to manage the sale of materials, some of which the authority is 

currently protected from within the contract. In addition, the authority would also need to 

purchase additional IT infrastructure and licences, and the mobilisation and on-going 

management of this, even if budgeted as effectively as possible, results in a financial risk. One of 

the greatest shifts in financial risk under this scenario will result from the requirement for the council 

Page 41



 

18  |  Commissioning Options Report 

to then pay into a Local Government Pensions Scheme (LGPS) for staff, which will represent a 

significantly higher contribution rate than the pension rates provided by contractors or in a LATCo. 

This LGPS liability is however seen as acceptable as the street cleansing service is already in-house, 

and as such, Bridgend CBC already bears this liability for a key front-line service. The other key 

financial risk under this option, which when considered alongside the LGPS liability, results in this 

option receiving a score of 1, is the requirement for the council to then manage the sale of 

materials. This poses a significant risk to the council given the possible volatility of the materials 

markets. This volatility can of course cut both ways, and the council may in fact benefit should 

material prices increase. However, this is a level of uncertainty that is difficult to predict.  

Option B has been given a score of 2, as with option A, Bridgend CBC will be directly responsible for 

delivery of a very large front-line service and all of the budget uncertainty this brings, even when it 

is operated via an arms-length company arrangement. As with Option A, Option B will also incur 

similar costs around IT infrastructure and licences and mobilisation of these elements. However, in 

this option the council will not have to pay LGPS which is a significant financial contribution. 

Nonetheless, even without the LGPS liability incurred under Option A, Option B is still seen as posing 

a high probability of financial risk to Bridgend CBC as the council ultimately remains liable for the 

LATCo’s costs, including the volatile costs relating to the management of material sales under the 

contract. 

Option C is seen as the most financially beneficial option available to the council and has been 

given a score of 4 accordingly. Under this option, Bridgend CBC can negotiate with the market 

and seek a potentially improved financial position compared to the existing contract, however this 

cannot be guaranteed. This will be made more achievable as during a competitive procurement, 

bidders are incentivised to provide commercially astute bids. Should Bridgend CBC seek to re-

procure the waste contract, they should anticipate a cost increase as bidder’s costs have 

increased since the existing contract was awarded. 

2.4.3 Market Conditions 

Table 2-5 provides a summary of the evaluation scoring for each option when considering the 

criteria of market conditions. A detailed rationale for this evaluation can be found below Table 2-5. 

Table 2-5: Options Evaluation – Market Conditions 

Criteria:  Market Conditions Weighting:  10% 

Option Score Description 

A 5 Bring service in-house 

B 5 Bringing the waste service into a LATCo 

C 2 Re-procurement of the waste service 

When assessing the market conditions for the relevant options, we have considered the following 

key questions:   

• Would this option interest the market and relevant market operators?  

• What risks would this option pose to Bridgend CBC should it be chosen?  

• What perceived issues would this option pose market operators?  

Page 42



 

19  |  Commissioning Options Report 

Options A and B have a score of 5 as there is no requirement to test these options within the 

marketplace.  

Option C has been given a score of 2, as whilst the market is being formally tested through a 

procurement process, there is a substantial risk associated with the current timelines for 

procurement. The contract with Kier is coming to an end in March 2024 and Plan B have been 

awarded a 2-year contract, meaning Bridgend CBC will need to re-procure by March 2026. This is 

an extremely tight timeline to go through the procurement procedure (assumed to be Competitive 

Dialogue due to the market’s preference for a procure with an element of negotiation) and leaves 

minimal time for mobilisation (estimated to be ~3 months). Upon speaking to contractors as part of 

this process, this was flagged as a significant risk with some stating such a timeline could deter them 

from participating as they want a procurement process to allow for sufficient time to engage well 

with the council in a meaningful way. Additionally, one contractor said that due to their 

geographic coverage they would not bid for the contract as they have no nearby contacts and 

no associated support network. For another contractor the nervousness around bidding was 

because Bridgend CBC run a kerbside sort service, with this specific contractor noting that should 

the calculations be incorrect regarding the volumes/tonnages in the stillages in the Romaquips it 

will cause a major operational issue. Another market operator also noted that the inclusion of 

material sales (tied to the operation of the Community Recycling Centres) within the contract 

would be seen as a possible risk and could have an impact upon the market’s interest in the 

opportunity.  

Finally, it should be noted that as of 12th December 2023, FCC Environment has formally agreed to 

acquire Urbaser’s UK businesses. This means that the market (should this acquisition be approved by 

the Competition and Markets Authority – which it appears to have been as of February 2024) will 

shrink to five major operators: Biffa, FCC, Serco, SUEZ and Veolia.  

Following the engagement with the market, the levels of interest for each market 

operator (with the exception of SUEZ who were unable to be contacted in time) 

has been given a RAG rating, with complimentary commentary being provided to 

summarise their key thoughts on the contract. This is detailed in Table 2-6: RAG 

Rating of Market Operator Interest 

. It is key to note that the RAG ratings are only indicative at this stage, and the market operators’ 

interest and engagement in a future procurement will be dictated by their internal resources, 

clashing procurements and the overall attractiveness of the opportunity. As such, those who have 

indicated an interest (e.g. FCC), may not be in a position to engage in a procurement for example. 

Page 43



 

20  |  Commissioning Options Report 

Table 2-6: RAG Rating of Market Operator Interest 

P
age 44



 

21  |  Commissioning Options Report 

Contractor Commentary RAG Rating 

Biffa Biffa did note that they had considered bidding for the 2-year contract but decided against it due to the short contract length 

and clashing opportunities. They also noted that they had the impression (due to a comment made by a councillor) that the 

council was only utilising the 2-year contract to afford them time to bring the services in-house. They did explain that a longer-

term contract (8-years) would be of more interest. Biffa expressed concerns regarding the indicative re-procurement timeline in 

respect to vehicle lead times and the mobilisation window. The inclusion of the CRC’s could also be a slight deterrent to Biffa. 

 

FCC FCC also considered bidding for the 2-year contract but were again put off by the length of term and the perceived intention 

of the council to bring the service in-house (as Biffa also mentioned). They stated that if the contract was longer, they would 

have bid. The fleet was also seen as a risk for FCC as they were at the end of their life, and they would be nervous about taking 

them over. If a future contract were for 8-years FCC would consider bidding. FCC also explained there was a concern 

regarding the risk relating to the management and sale of the materials. FCC indicated a preference for the Competitive 

Dialogue procedure to be used in a future re-procurement due to the nuances of the kerbside sort service and risk relating to 

the material sales.  

 

Serco Serco indicated that the contract would be unlikely to be of interest due to the geographical location and lack of 

neighbouring contracts which could provide support. 

 

SUEZ Discussions were not held with Suez, however FCC stated that Suez might be interested in the opportunity, and Veolia stated 

that Suez did have experience with kerbside sort methodology, so again they thought this may be of interest to them.  

N/a 

P
age 45



 

22  |  Commissioning Options Report 

Urbaser Bridgend was on Urbaser’s pipeline when the council issued the previous tender, however they did not bid due to internal 

resourcing. The contract would be of interest due to their nearby Cheltenham contract. Urbaser did state that if the existing 

vehicles are taken over then mobilisation in 5-6 months is possible, they also said that if street cleansing was included it would be 

a more interesting opportunity. However, it must be acknowledged that Urbaser is in the process of being bought by FCC, and 

so will not exist as a distinct market operator should the council re-procure. Urbaser noted the proposed timelines would be tight 

and could result in clashes with other procurements.  

 

Veolia Veolia noted they do not have extensive experience in kerbside sort systems and do have operational and H&S concerns 

regarding the methodology Veolia expressed a concern regarding the capacities in the stillages of the Romaquips when 

bidding, as if they bid it incorrectly there will be significant operational issues. They also had concerns on the timeline for re-

procurement. Furthermore, Veolia indicated that there were other opportunities on their pipeline which they view as of more 

interest, and as such they would be unlikely to bid should the council re-procure.  

 

P
age 46



 

23  |  Commissioning Options Report 

Should Bridgend CBC decide to re-procure the waste contract, it is advised to start the 

procurement process as soon as possible to allow sufficient time to undertake a robust 

procurement process and facilitate a reasonable mobilisation window. Furthermore, it would also 

be worth the council considering extending the Plan B contract to allow additional time to 

undertake the procurement and mobilisation activities. This being said, extending into 2027 may 

cause further clashes with other waste contracts which expire in 2027.   

The anticipated procurement timeline can be seen in Appendix A.3.0. This excel also provides high-

level timelines for the in-house and LATCo commissioning options approaches in addition. 

2.4.3.1 Procurement Considerations 

Should Bridgend CBC decide to outsource their waste services to the private sector, certain key 

elements must be considered. A brief summary has been provided below to highlight these 

considerations:  

• Timing of any re-procurement:  

o The Plan B contract will expire in March 2026 and the Council will be under pressure 

to procure a new waste contract prior to the expiration of the current contract. This 

does not afford the Council the ability to plan any procurement exercise so as to 

avoid clashes with other known procurements.  

o The timing of a procurement exercise is vital to ensure enough market interest is 

achieved. As has been seen recently in the case of the disintegration of the South 

London Waste Partnership contract, multiple procurements which have clashing 

timeframes can cause an issue for contractors as their bidding resources are limited. 

This leads to those opportunities which are seen as less appealing receiving less 

interest from the market, which reduces to the competition and onus on those 

bidders in the exercise to price as effectively as possible.  

o A timeline for the procurement can be found in Appendix A.3.0, with a breakdown 

of potential procurement clashes. A summary of the number of contracts expiring in 

2026 can be seen in Table 2-7. 

Table 2-7: Expiring Contract in 2026 

Contractor Number of Contracts 

Amey 0 

Biffa 8 

Serco 2 

SUEZ 2 

Urbaser 3 

Veolia 2 

Hills Municipal Collections Limited 1 

Plan B 1 

Total 19 

Page 47



 

24  |  Commissioning Options Report 

• Procurement procedure:  

o Bidders typically prefer the use of procedures which allow an element of negotiation 

to support open discussion about what the Council is asking for and the commercial 

impact of this. As previously mentioned, the Procurement Act 2023 has recently 

received Royal Assent. This Act aims to provide local authorities with greater flexibility 

in terms of the procurement procedure used, and advice would need to be sought 

on the most suitable procedure or approach to take. This is certainly something that 

would benefit from market operator input.  

o However, this negotiation/dialogue process creates a significant resource pressure 

on the Council due to their lengthy nature and periods of particularly intensive time 

requirements. This in itself could further exacerbate the timeline pressures faced in a 

procurement procedure.  

• Market engagement:  

o It is important to engage early with the market and utilise soft-market testing to seek 

the market’s view on particular elements such as procurement procedure, timeline, 

and areas of commercial risk. Biffa in particular suggested a ‘light-touch’ market 

engagement exercise be undertaken to lessen the timelines required.  

• Financial and commercial terms:  

o Should the Council decide to go out to market, the financial and commercial terms 

on which bidders are bidding must be carefully considered. Certain elements are 

known to be red lines for bidders, with these including pension liabilities and 

performance mechanisms which are seen as unfair or punitive.  

• Policy uncertainty:  

o At the moment, there is a high level of uncertainty within the market regarding key 

government policies, including Extended Producer Responsibility, Deposit Return 

Scheme and ‘Simpler Recycling. When procuring an outsourced waste service, 

Change in Law and Qualifying Change in Law provisions within a contract will be 

seen as vital from a bidder’s perspective as they will want certainty on how certain 

elements of policy uncertainty are managed and where the associated risk sits.  

o It is possible to request unmarked method statements from bidders regarding key 

elements of uncertainty e.g. free garden waste collections. This would allow the 

Council to review a proposed methodology and gain an understanding of likely 

costs should the ‘anticipated change’ be introduced during the course of the 

contract.  

  

Page 48



 

25  |  Commissioning Options Report 

2.4.4 Operational Risk  
 
Table 2-8 provides a summary of the evaluation scoring for each option when considering the 

criteria of operational risk. A detailed rationale for this evaluation can be found below Table 2-8. 

Table 2-8: Options Evaluation – Operational Risk 

Criteria:  Operational Risk Weighting:  15% 

Option Score Description 

A 2 Bring service in-house 

B 2 Bringing the waste service into a LATCo 

C 4 Re-procurement of the waste service 

When assessing the operational risks for the relevant options, we have considered the following key 

questions:  

• What operational risks are likely to be incurred by each of the relevant options?  

• How likely are the operational risks to lead to failure for Bridgend CBC? 

Options A and B have been given a score of 2. In both options the operational risk fundamentally 

shifts to Bridgend either directly or through a LATCo. Both options are subject to a key operational 

risk relating to the IT infrastructure which will be required to deliver the services. Should Bridgend 

CBC not continue with the same systems as used by Plan B from the start of the new operational 

model, this would increase the risk to the authority. As street cleansing is already delivered in-house, 

Bridgend CBC have experience of operating a front-line service, which will be of use when 

operating the waste service. This prior experience prevents Option A and B as being seen as posing 

a high probability of high operational risk.  

Option C has been given a score of 4, this reflects the fact that should the procurement lead to a 

new contractor delivering the services, there is a low probability of operational risk associated with 

a change in contractor. This is seen as a low probability of risk as the procurement process will allow 

the new contractor to be tested to provide the council with confidence in their ability to deliver the 

services. Should the procurement result in Plan B retaining the contract, this would assist in this 

matter as they will be the incumbent provider.  However, it must be acknowledged that Plan B are 

newcomers to the market from a waste collection perspective, and this has in recent years proven 

to result in operational issues, as happened with Countrystyle in the London Borough of Bexley.  

  

Page 49



 

26  |  Commissioning Options Report 

 

2.4.5 Implementation Risk 
Table 2-9 provides a summary of the evaluation scoring for each option when considering the 

criteria of implementation risk. A detailed rationale for this evaluation can be found below Table 2-

9. 

Table 2-9: Options Evaluation – Implementation Risk 

Criteria:  Implementation Risk Weighting:  15% 

Option Score Description 

A 2 Bring service in-house 

B 2 Bringing the waste service into a LATCo 

C 2 Re-procurement of the waste service 

When assessing the implementation risks for the relevant options, we have considered the following 

key questions:  

• What implementation risks are likely to be incurred by each of the relevant options?  

• How likely are the implementation risks to impact Bridgend CBC? 

Options A and B have also both been given a score of 2, representing a low probability of high 

implementation risk due to the bringing of the waste service either in-house, or into a LATCo. Whilst 

most staff would TUPE from Plan B under these scenarios, there is the risk that senior staff would not. 

This risk can be reduced as senior roles can be recruited into either permanently or temporality as 

part of the mobilisation process. Within these options there is also a substantial implementation risk 

surrounding IT systems as these would need to be specified, procured, and implemented to support 

day one operations. The transfer (TUPE) of staff either in-house or into a LATCo is a key risk for Option 

A and B respectively, given that typically 60-70% of a contract value will stem from the staffing 

costs. Should this process be poorly handled, there is a risk that staff leave the contract, which 

would drastically impact the start of the service and ongoing operations. Furthermore, under these 

options, it should be noted that as Plan B will be aware they are losing the contract (and Bridgend 

CBC would be unlikely to reprocure the contract in the near future), they may potentially be 

somewhat obstructive during the demobilisation of the contract. This would have to be managed 

carefully so as not to cause additional implementation risk and it should be noted that there is no 

guarantee that Plan B would act in this way. Despite the implementation risks faced in these 

options, Bridgend CBC would have sufficient time to mobilise both an in-house and LATCo 

operation. High-level mobilisation timelines have been mapped and can be seen in Appendix 

A.3.0. 

Option C has been given a score of 2. Should Plan B not be successful in the re-tendering process 

there is an implementational risk during the contract mobilisation whilst the new service provider 

beds in. In particular, in the modelled procurement timeline (see Appendix A.3.0) there are only 

three months in which to mobilise. Whilst this is only indicative, this is a very short timeframe in which 

to mobilise and poses a significant risk. It is unlikely that any new vehicles could be procured during 

this timeframe. Such a short mobilisation can, and has been, achievable, but would be best 

avoided. Should the provider not change from Plan B, or the mobilisation window be extended, 

then the risk would be reduced significantly. Furthermore, if Bridgend CBC can utilise the existing 

Page 50



 

27  |  Commissioning Options Report 

fleet and make these available to the new contractor, this will help mitigate the risk of vehicles not 

being available for the start of the contract.  

2.4.6 Control and Ability to Change 

Table 2-10 provides a summary of the evaluation scoring for each option when considering the 

criteria of control and the ability to enact change. A detailed rationale for this evaluation can be 

found below Table 2-10. 

Table 2-10: Options Evaluation – Control and Ability to Change 

Criteria:  Control and Ability to 

Change 

Weighting:  20% 

Option Score Description 

A 5 Bring service in-house 

B 4 Bringing the waste service into a LATCo 

C 3 Re-procurement the waste service  

When assessing the impact of each option on Bridgend CBC’s control over services and ability to 

change aspects of delivery, for the relevant options we have considered the following key 

questions:  

• Do the options provide Bridgend CBC with the same, more, or less control than currently?  

Option A has been given the highest score of 5 as all services are directly managed by Bridgend 

CBC and so the council has a high level of control over, and ability to change, the services. 

However, this does not mean that changes can be made to the service as an when the council 

would like to, as any service changes would need to be planned in and arranged in order to be 

successful. Furthermore, this option does not allow the council officers or councillors to dictate 

where waste rounds are sent on a daily basis, as they will still have the standard round structure you 

would see under either of the other two options. 

With regards to Option B, whilst the services will be delivered by a LATCo which will be wholly 

owned by the council, the LATCo will still be a separate legal and commercial entity and any 

changes to the contract or services will still need to be negotiated, likely using the Change clause 

in the contract (as with Option C). Nonetheless, this option is still seen as providing Bridgend with an 

increase in their ability to enact change compared to an external contractor.  

Option C has been given a score of 3. In this option, the relationship between the Council and the 

service contractor is managed via a contract. This means that should the Council wish to enact 

any change to the services, they must first negotiate and agree the changes with the service 

provider. It is anticipated that this would be managed via a ‘Change’ clause within the contract, 

which is assumed to be applicable for the outsourced contract in the re-procurement option. As 

such, this results in there being no change from the current operation.  

 

 

Page 51



 

28  |  Commissioning Options Report 

2.4.7 Service Quality 

 

2.4.8 T 

Table 2-11 provides a summary of the evaluation scoring for each option when considering the 

criteria of service quality. A detailed rationale for this evaluation can be found below Table 2-11. 

 

Table 2-11: Options Evaluation – Service Quality 
 

Criteria:  Service Quality Weighting:  10% 

Option Score Description 

A 3 Bring service in-house 

B 3 Bringing the waste service into a LATCo 

C 3 Re-procurement of the waste service 

The quality of service delivered to residents is based upon the following factors: 

• The training of staff. 

• The quality and proactiveness of management and supervision.  

• The ability of the contract or other KPIs to monitor and manage issues. 

Within this assessment a score of 3 represents no change from the current position for Bridgend 

CBC. It is not possible to confidently say that under these options the quality of the services 

delivered would be impacted. This is because there is likely to be no difference to staff training, or 

the level of management or supervision. What may change in these options is the focus of the 

service on this, however, these are large and complex operational services and measuring 

improvement in service quality with the same resource base as currently will be difficult.   

  

Page 52



 

29  |  Commissioning Options Report 

 

3.0 Financial Modelling 

3.1.1 Approach to Financial Modelling 

The objective of the financial modelling task was to understand the relative affordability of each 

delivery option in relation to the baseline (the existing Kier budget). In Eunomia’s experience, large 

financial savings are rarely observed unless the design of the service fundamentally changes. The 

outcomes of this options appraisal could lead to a fundamental change in the way in which 

services are delivered within the borough, and therefore a detailed, transparent, and robust 

financial analysis has been carried out. 

Eunomia’s established service delivery options model firstly builds up operational costs from first 

principles to ensure that the nuance of cost in each option is fully reflected, and then compares 

the operational cost of each option to the current amount paid for the service (the baseline). This 

allows a comparison of resourcing levels within each option to understand where savings are 

made, or where additional cost centres created. 

For Bridgend, the first step in the process was to calibrate the 2022/2023 baseline costs. The purpose 

of this exercise was to ensure that all costs are captured in the baseline as accurately as possible. 

To develop the baseline position, Eunomia worked closely with Bridgend and Kier to gather 

detailed employee data and cost information regarding vehicle and overhead costs. All data 

provided by Kier was clearly labelled within the model alongside Eunomia assumptions, and the 

basis for these assumptions. Detailed inputs and assumptions are included in Appendix A.4.0. 

The next step in the process was to model each future delivery option. Future options were 

modelled for the 2026/27 financial year, which matches with the end of the Plan B contract 

(excluding possible extensions), so all costs were uplifted using indexation to reflect inflationary 

impacts between 2022/23 and 2026/27. It is important to note that the inflation rate between 2024 

and 2026 was estimated and the future actual inflation may be higher or lower than the estimate. 

However, for the purpose of this project this is not a concern as a change in the inflation will not 

change the order of the financial results. 

3.1.2 Cost Modelling Results 

The results of the cost modelling are presented as total annual costs. The baseline reflects the 

2022/2023 budget position. The changes in each of the three future options are detailed below: 

• In-House: in this option, there is a significant change in the terms and conditions of employment, 

including salary increases (for some roles only) and increased employer pension contributions. In 

addition to this there is a change in management structure required which impacts costs, these 

are somewhat offset by the absence of a margin being included. There are also additional costs 

needed for the purchase of digital applications.  

• LATCo: in this option there are no changes to the terms and conditions of employment, as staff 

will transfer across on TUPE terms and the working assumption is that the LATCo would operate 

with the same terms and conditions as the current contractor. As with the In-house option there 

is a change to the management structure (for example the recruitment of a Managing Director 

and Operations Director) and a 3% margin has also been built in as contingency (which is not 

accounted for in the in-house option). The additional costs needed for the purchase of digital 

applications are also included.  

• Re-procurement: as TUPE applies, the terms and conditions of employment are maintained in 

this option. There are no changes to the management structure compared to the baseline, nor 

Page 53



 

30  |  Commissioning Options Report 

are there added costs for the purchasing of digital applications. There is a 12% margin and 

overheads included, which is higher than what the current contractor achieves (8%).  

Table 3-1 provides a summary of total annual costs for the baseline and the future service delivery 

options. Transition and mobilisation costs are not included as there are one-off costs. They are 

presented separately in section 3.1.3. 

Table 3-1: Modelled Annual Costs for Each Option 

Cost Centre Baseline 22/23 Re-procurement In-house LATCo  

Margin and 

Overheads 
£1.25m £1.79m £1.26m £1.58m 

Other Costs £1.32m £1.43m £1.52m £1.52m 

Material Sales & 

Waste Disposal 
-£0.65m -£0.78m -£0.78m -£0.78m 

Vehicles and 

Equipment 
£1.98m £2.55m £2.65m £2.65m 

Frontline Staff £3.29m £4.04m £4.72m £4.04m 

Total £7.19m £9.03m £9.37m £9.02m 

It is worth noting that indexation has been applied to the future options to account for a start date 

in 2026/27, hence why all options have significantly higher costs than the Baseline which reflects 

2022/23 costs.

Page 54



 

31  |  Commissioning Options Report 

Figure 3-1: Modelled Annual Costs of Baseline and Service Delivery Options  

Baseline 2022/23 Re-procurement In-house LATCo

Margin & Overheads £1.25m £1.79m £1.26m £1.58m

Other Costs £1.32m £1.43m £1.52m £1.52m

Material Sales & Waste Disposal -£0.65m -£0.78m -£0.78m -£0.78m

Vehicles & Equipment £1.98m £2.55m £2.65m £2.65m

Frontline Staff £3.29m £4.04m £4.72m £4.04m

Total £7.19m £9.03m £9.37m £9.02m

-£2m

£0m

£2m

£4m

£6m

£8m

£10m

£12m

To
ta

l C
o

st
 (

£
m

)

Frontline Staff Vehicles & Equipment

Material Sales & Waste Disposal Other Costs

Margin & Overheads Total

P
age 55



 

32  |  Commissioning Options Report 

As shown in Figure 3-1 and Table 3-1, the most expensive option is the In-House option (£9.37m), 

with the cheapest being the LATCo (£9.02m), and re-procurement slightly more expensive than the 

LATCo (£9.03m). A breakdown of the differences in costs is provided below. 

 

Frontline staff: 

The in-house option is the most expensive option, this is primarily due to the contributions needed 

for the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), which is currently assumed at 20%, compared to 

the LATCo and re-procurement options which range from 3% to 5%. TUPE would apply to any 

transferring staff, so where the Kier salaries are higher these have remained as is, but where the 

Council salaries are higher an uplift has been applied, which increases the financial contributions 

from the Council as well.  

 

Frontline staff costs are the same in the re-procurement and LATCo options due to TUPE applying 

and not requiring any change to pension contributions.  

 

Following Bridgend CBC’s conversations with unions, it appears that there is likely to be an uplift in 

council staff salaries in the near future, which would then increase the cost for the in-house options 

(for the avoidance of doubt, this salary uplift has not been included in the modelled costs). For 

information, and to put a potential uplift in perspective with regards to the results of the financial 

modelling, a salary increase of 1-5% in the in-house option compared to the other options would 

lead to an additional extra cost of £60k-£290k per year for the in-house option. 

 

Vehicles and Equipment: 

Vehicle costs for re-procurement (£2.55m) are lower than for the In-house and LATCo options 

(£2.65m). It was assumed in all future options that the Council would provide the capital for the 

vehicles, however in the re-procurement option the contractor would purchase the vehicles on 

behalf of the Council and would be able to use their buying power to leverage lower vehicles 

prices than if the Council were to purchase the vehicles directly, which would be the case in the in-

house and LATCo options. A 5% uplift in vehicle capital costs was applied to both the in-house and 

LATCo options to reflect this.  

 

Material Sales and Waste Disposal: 

There is no difference in costs between the three future options for material sales and waste 

disposal. There could have been an argument to assume that for the in-house and LATCo options 

the Council would not be able to secure the same material prices than the contractor in the re-

procurement option. However, Eunomia reviewed data available internally which showed that 

there is no tendency for contractors to achieve better prices for material sales than councils, and 

Bridgend CBC would benefit from WRAP Cymru’s help to secure material contracts, therefore no 

difference in costs was assumed in this section. Indexation has been applied to the Baseline to 

account for the Baseline being the year 2022/23 and the options being the year 2026/27, which is 

why there is an uplift in the costs from the Baseline. 

 

Other Costs: 

When looking at Other Costs, re-procurement has the lowest costs at £1.43m and in-house and 

LATCo are slightly more expensive at £1.52m. This is due to the Council getting an annual revenue 

of approximately £25k through contractor’s defaults in the re-procurement option, which would not 

apply in the in-house and LATCo options. Additionally, in both these options the Councill will need 

to purchase and pay an annual fee for digital applications such as asset management system, fuel 

management system, health and safety system, etc.     

 

Margin & Overheads:  

In this cost category the re-procurement option has the highest costs at £1.79m, the in-house option 

is the lowest at £1.26m and the LATCo option is in-between at £1.58m. In the re-procurement 

option, a 12% margin has been applied which is the typical target margin for contractors in waste 

contracts and includes profit and overheads such as payroll and other centralised functions. In the 

in-house option there is no margin, however there are changes in the management structure which 

impact the costs. Similarly, in the LATCo option there is a change in management structure, and a 

Page 56



 

33  |  Commissioning Options Report 

3% margin has also been built into account for any unplanned expenditure and to provide risk 

contingency. 

 

The difference in management structure is outlined in Table 3-2. 

Table 3-2: Management Staff Differences in the Options 

Staff Baseline 

2022/23 

Re-

procurement 

In-house LATCo 

Business Manager  1 1 1 1 

LATCo Managing 

Director 
- - - 0.5 

LATCo Operations 

Director  
- - - 1 

LATCo Finance Director  - - - 1 

Group Manager  - - 
0.5 (shared with 

street cleansing) 
- 

HR Manager   0.5 0.5 

Payroll Officer   1 1 

Transport Manager  - - 1 1 

Procurement Manager   0.5 0.5 

HSEQ Manager - - 0.5 0.5 

Performance Manager - - 0.5 0.5 

   

Bridgend CBC indicated that the Business Manager played an important role in the current 

contract and would be expected to carry on with this role in all future options, as the above table 

demonstrates. For the in-house option, the waste service would be overseen by a Group Manager 

who would be shared with the street cleansing service. The Council would need to appoint a 

Managing Director, Operations Director and Finance Director for a LATCo. It was assumed that a 

part-time role would be sufficient for the Managing Director due to the relatively small size of the 

service. It is common for this role to be part time and should not be an issue for recruitment.  

 

Other roles required in the in-house and LATCo options are a part-time HR Manager and full-time 

Payroll Officer as the Council HR team does not have capacity to absorb extra work. The Council 

would also need a full-time Transport Manager as the additional number of vehicles required 

cannot be absorbed by the current Council’s Transport Manager. Finally, three other part-time roles 

are needed for the in-house and LATCo options: Procurement Manager, HSEQ Manager and 

Performance Manager. 

  

Page 57



 

34  |  Commissioning Options Report 

3.1.3 Transition/ Mobilisation Costs 

The costs associated with transitioning to the options and mobilisation costs, which are all one-off 

costs, have also been modelled. The outcome of this can be seen in the Table 3-3 below.  

Table 3-3: Costs associated with transition and mobilisation for the three future options 

Item Re-Procurement In-house LATCo 

Legal Support £140,000 £10,000 £100,000 

LATCo Set Up £0 £0 £55,000 

Procurement Technical Support £100,000 £0 £15,000 

Compliance £0 £19,800 £19,800 

Mandatory Training £20,000 £20,000 £20,000 

Digital £50,000 £330,000 £330,000 

Depot £77,500 £77,500 £77,500 

Contingency £58,125 £68,595 £92,595 

Resource Costs – Workforce 

onboarding 
£0 £60,000 £60,000 

Resource Costs - Other £84,167 £179,167 £201,667 

Total £529,792 £765,062 £971,562 

The costs associated with transitioning into a LATCo are the highest at £0.97m. In this option a new 

entity is being created which will require a significant amount of legal support and other LATCo set-

up costs such as development of a business plan and branding. Both the in-house and LATCo 

options include mobilisation costs that do not apply to the re-procurement option, such as terms 

and conditions legal support, compliance work and purchase of applications. Those options also 

require a high level of resources ahead of the start of the new service delivery to support the 

transition, including resources for the onboarding of the workforce. Re-procurement mobilisation 

costs include legal and technical support for the re-procurement process, as well as other initial 

digital and depot costs that apply to all options.  

It is worth noting that for the in-house and LATCo options these would be one off costs (assuming 

that there is no other service delivery change in the future), however for the re-procurement, these 

costs would be incurred every ~eight years for every new procurement.  

4.0 Conclusion 

4.1 Risk Assessment of Future Commissioning 

Options 
The commissioning options assessment undertaken as part of this work is summarised in Table 4-1. 

This analysis has identified that from a qualitative perspective, the commissioning option which 

receives the highest score is that of the re-procurement route, with both the LATCo and In-house 

option receiving very similar scores, that of 56% and 58% respectively. With regards to the re-

procurement option, the main risk highlighted is the timeline and market interest which needs 

careful consideration. There is the ability to mitigate this risk if extending with Plan B for 1 year, 

though consideration would then need to be given to procurement clashes for contracts then 

expiring in 2027.  

Page 58



 

35  |  Commissioning Options Report 

Table 4-1: Summary of Qualitative Commissioning Options Assessment 

Criteria Weighting Option A – In-

House 

Option B – LATCo Option C – Re-

procurement 

Capacity and 

Capability 
10.0% 6.0% 4.0% 10.0% 

Financial and 

Commercial Risk 
20.0% 4.0% 8.0% 16.0% 

Market 

Conditions 
10.0% 10.0% 10.0% 4.0% 

Operational Risk 15.0% 6.0% 6.0% 12.0% 

Implementation 

Risk 
15.0% 6.0% 6.0% 6.0% 

Control and 

Ability to Change 
20.0% 20.0% 16.0% 12.0% 

Service Quality 10.0% 6.0% 6.0% 6.0% 

Total Score  58.0% 56.0% 66.0% 

Rank  2 3 1 

4.2  Financial Modelling 

The cost analysis evaluated three waste management options: in-house (£9.37 m), LATCo (£9.02m), 

and re-procurement (£9.03m). The in-house choice emerges as the most expensive, primarily due 

to its higher LGPS contributions, set at 20%. Frontline staff costs vary, with re-procurement and LATCo 

aligning due to compliance with TUPE regulations. 

In terms of vehicles, re-procurement stands out as the more economical choice (£2.55m) 

compared to the in-house and LATCo options (£2.65). This stems from the assumption that the 

contractor, in the re-procurement option, would leverage its buying power to secure better vehicle 

prices, as opposed to the Council directly purchasing the vehicles in the other options. 

Management roles differ across the options, with in-house requiring a Group Manager shared with 

street cleansing, the LATCo option needing a part-time Managing Director and full-time Operations 

Page 59



 

36  |  Commissioning Options Report 

Director and Finance Director, whilst for the re-procurement those high-level managing roles are 

covered in the overheads included in the contractor’s margin. 

Material Sales and Waste Disposal costs are consistent across all options, adjusted for indexation. 

Moving to Other Costs, re-procurement emerges as the most cost-effective option (£1.43m), In-

house and LATCo options are slightly more expensive (£1.52m) due to additional expenses mainly 

related to digital applications. 

Examining Margin & Overheads, re-procurement incurs the highest costs (£1.79m) due to a 12% 

margin, which includes profit and overheads. In-house presents the most economical choice 

(£1.26m) with no margin applied, while LATCo is in-between the two (£1.58m) with a 3% margin 

factored in for risk contingency. 

Overall, the LATCo option is the cheapest, however it does incur high mobilisation and transition 

costs (close to £1m) compared to both the in-house (£770k) and re-procurement (£530k) options. It 

is worth noting that for the in-house and LATCo options these mobilisation and transition costs would 

be one off costs (assuming that there is no other service delivery change in the future), however for 

the re-procurement these costs would be incurred every ~eight years for every new procurement. 

4.3 Summary 

In summary, the analysis shows that from a qualitative perspective, the re-procurement option is the 

most favourable, followed by the in-house and LATCo options respectively. However, the timeline 

for the re-procurement option is a real risk (as outlined in section 2.4.3) and could deter market 

operators from engaging in a procurement exercise should it not afford sufficient time for them to 

robustly bid, and also mobilise, should they win the contract. Extending the current contract with 

Plan B may help to mitigate this risk, alternatively the council can seek to begin a re-procurement 

as soon as possible to afford the procurement and mobilisation processes as long as possible. It 

would be vital to engage with the market on these timelines to understand if this would be feasible 

should Bridgend CBC take this option forwards.  

With regards to the financial modelling, the LATCo option is the cheapest of the three, though the 

re-procurement option is only marginally more expensive (in the region of ~£0.01m per annum). 

Given this very slight variation, it is difficult to say with certainty which option would be preferable 

from a financial perspective and ultimately will come down to the council’s affordability 

considerations, as well as political drivers and appetite towards risk management.  

When the qualitative and financial elements are taken together, Eunomia would recommend that 

Bridgend CBC considers either the re-procurement or LATCo options going forward, with the re-

procurement option appearing to be the most favourable should the timeline for a future 

procurement be feasible and practicable.   

Page 60



 

37  |  Commissioning Options Report 

Appendices 

Page 61



 

38  |  Commissioning Options Report 

A.1.0 Evaluation Scoring Guidance 

Criteria Question Being 

Asked 

1 2 3 4 5 

Capacity and 

Capability 

Does Bridgend 

CBC have the 

capacity to 

deliver? 

No, significant 

expertise required 

to manage the 

service - 

specialism of need 

will make this hard 

in time scales 

No, significant 

expertise required 

to manage the 

service - this 

should be 

achievable in 

timescales 

Yes, more 

extensive 

recruitment would 

be required to 

manage services 

Yes, some 

recruitment 

required into 

existing teams 

Yes, no 

concerns 

Financial & 

Commercial Risk 

Does the option 

pose an increased 

financial risk to the 

authority? 

Yes, high 

probability of 

unacceptable 

financial risk to the 

authority 

Yes, high 

probability of 

acceptable 

financial risk to the 

authority 

Yes, low 

probability of 

acceptable 

financial risk to the 

authority 

No change from 

current operation 

No, the risk 

position would 

be more 

favourable to 

the authority 

than current 

operations 

P
age 62



 

39  |  Commissioning Options Report 

Criteria Question Being 

Asked 

1 2 3 4 5 

Market Conditions Are the market 

conditions able to 

support this 

option? 

No, the market 

would not support 

the option 

No, there would 

be significant 

concerns 

Yes, although 

there are some 

substantial risks 

with approach 

Yes, although 

there are some 

minor risks 

Yes, no 

concerns 

Operational Risk 

(post mobilisation 

and initial three 

months of the 

contract) 

Does the option 

pose an 

operational risk to 

the authority? 

Yes, high 

probability of high 

operational risk 

Yes, low 

probability of high 

operational risk 

Yes, high 

probability of low 

operational risk 

Yes, low 

probability of low 

operational risk 

No, no 

concerns 

Implementation 

Risk (during 

mobilisation and 

the initial three 

months of the 

contract) 

Does the option 

present an 

implementation 

risk? 

Yes, high 

probability of high 

implementation 

risk 

Yes, low 

probability of high 

implementation 

risk 

Yes, high 

probability of low 

implementation 

risk 

Yes, low 

probability of low 

implementation 

risk 

No, no 

concerns 

Control and Ability 

to Change 

Does the option 

allow BRIDGEND 

CBC to increase 

No, services would 

be very unlikely to 

increase 

No, services would 

be unlikely to 

increase 

No change from 

current operation 

Yes, services 

would be likely to 

increase 

Yes, services 

would be very 

likely to 

P
age 63



 

40  |  Commissioning Options Report 

Criteria Question Being 

Asked 

1 2 3 4 5 

control and 

develop services? 

BRIDGEND CBC's 

ability to control 

change 

BRIDGEND CBC’s 

ability to control 

change 

BRIDGEND CBC’s 

ability to control 

change 

increase 

BRIDGEND 

CBC’s ability 

to control 

change 

Service Quality Does the option 

improve the 

quality of service 

offered to 

residents? 

No, quality of 

service would 

probably be 

negatively 

affected 

No, quality of 

service would be 

affected slightly 

negatively 

No, quality of 

service remains as 

current 

Yes, quality would 

be slightly 

improved 

Yes, quality of 

service would 

be strongly 

improved 

 

P
age 64



 

 

A.2.0 Commissioning Options Evaluation Model 

Commissioning%20

Options%20Evaluation%20Model%20v1.0.xlsx
 

A.3.0 Indicative High-Level Timelines and 

Market Analysis 

Bridgend%20-%20In

dicative%20Detailed%20&%20High-Level%20Timelines%20v2.0.xlsx
 

  

Page 65



 

 

A.4.0 Financial Modelling Inputs and 

Assumptions 

A.4.1 Staff Assumptions 

Table A 1: Baseline Staff Inputs - Staff Numbers 

Service Staff Role Numbers 

Refuse Collections HGV Driver 5 

 Loader 13 

Recycling Collections HGV Driver 20 

 7.5t Driver 3 

 Loader 30 

Bulky Waste Collections 7.5t Driver 1 

AHP Collections 7.5t Driver 2 

Container Deliveries 3.5t Driver 2 

Missed Collections 3.5t Driver 1 

CRC Service HGV Driver 2 

 Team Leader 5 

 Recycling Advisor 13 

Transfer Station HGV Driver 1 

 Yard Driver 1 

 Yard operative 7 

Management Business Manager 1 

 Operations Manager 1 

 Supervisors 5 

Admin Senior Administrator 1 

 Administrator 5 

Finance Accountant 1 

TOTAL 120 

 

Page 66



 

 

Table A 2: Options Staff Assumptions - Staff Salaries for new roles 

Staff Role Annual Salary for 1 FTE 

LATCo Managing Director £80,000 

LATCo Operations Director £60,000 

LATCo Financial Director £60,000 

Group Manager £68,000 

HR Manager £40,000 

Payroll Officer £25,000 

Transport Manager £35,000 

Procurement Manager £40,000 

HSEQ Manager £35,000 

Performance Manager £35,000 

A.4.2 Vehicle Assumptions 

Table A 3: Baseline Vehicle Input – Vehicle Numbers 

Service Vehicle Type Frontline 

Numbers 

Spare Numbers 

Refuse Collections 26t RCV 5 1 

 12t RCV 1 - 

Recycling Collections 12t RRV 15 3 

 7.5t RRV 2 - 

Communal Recycling 22t RCV 1 - 

Garden Collections 26t RCV - 1 

Bulky Waste Collections 7.5t Box Vehicle with tail lift 1 - 

AHP Collections 7.5t Vehicle 2 - 

Container Deliveries 3.5t Vehicle 2 - 

CRC Service 32t Hook Loader 2 - 

 Material Handler 3 - 

Transfer Station Baler 1 - 

 Fork Truck 3 - 

 Telehandler 1 - 

TOTAL 39 5 

Page 67



 

 

Table A 4: Baseline Vehicle Costs Inputs and Assumptions 

 

  

Page 68



 

 

 
 

 

eunomia.co.uk 

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



Commissioning Options - Qualitative Assessment

Primary 

Criteria
Secondary Criteria Assessment Question Weighting

Score 

Awarded

Weighted 

Score

Weighted 

Score

Weighted 

Score

Capacity and Capability

Does the entity delivering the service 

have the capacity/capability to do so to 

a high standard? Can this be acquired?

10.0% 3 6.0% 4.0% 10.0%

Financial and Commercial Risk
Does the option pose an increased 

financial risk to the authority?
20.0% 1 4.0% 8.0% 16.0%

Market Conditions
Are the market conditions supporting 

this option?
10.0% 5 10.0% 10.0% 4.0%

Operational Risk

Does the option pose an increased 

operational risk of failure to the 

authority?

15.0% 2 6.0% 6.0% 12.0%

Implementation Risk
Does the option present 

implementation risk?
15.0% 2 6.0% 6.0% 6.0%

Control and Ability to Change

Does the option allow Bridgend County 

Borough Council to control and develop 

services?

20.0% 5 20.0% 16.0% 12.0%

Service Quality
Does the option improve the quality of 

service offered to residents?
10.0% 3 6.0% 6.0% 6.0%

Total Score 100.0% 58.0% 56.0% 66.0%

Rank TRUE 2 3 1

Quality 

Option A - Bring 

service In-House

Option B - 

LATCo

Option C - 

Re-

P
age 71



P
age 72



Criteria Question Being Asked 1 2 3 4 5

Capacity and Capability

Does Bridgend County Borough 

Council have the capacity to 

deliver?

No, significant expertise 

required to manage the service - 

specialism of need will make this 

hard in time scales

No, significant expertise 

required to manage the service - 

this should be achievable in 

timescales

Yes, more extensive recruitment 

would be required to manage 

services

Yes, some recruitment required 

into existing teams
Yes, no concerns

Financial & Commercial Risk

Does the option pose an 

increased financial risk to the 

authority?

Yes, high probability of 

unacceptable financial risk to 

the authority

Yes, high probability of 

acceptable financial risk to the 

authority

Yes, low probability of 

acceptable financial risk to the 

authority

No change from current 

operation

No, the risk position would be 

more favourable to the 

authority than current 

operations

Market Conditions
Are the market conditions able 

to support this option?

No, the market would not 

support the option

No, there would be significant 

concerns

Yes, although there are some 

substantial risks with approach

Yes, although there are some 

minor risks
Yes, no concerns

Operational Risk (post 

mobilisation and initial three 

months of the contract)

Does the option pose an 

operational risk to the 

authority?

Yes, high probability of high 

operational risk

Yes, low probability of high 

operational risk

Yes, high probability of low 

operational risk

Yes, low probability of low 

operational risk
No, no concerns

Implementation Risk (during 

mobilisation and the initial 

three months of the contract)

Does the option present an 

implementation risk?

Yes, high probability of high 

implementation risk

Yes, low probability of high 

implementation risk

Yes, high probability of low 

implementation risk

Yes, low probability of low 

implementation risk
No, no concerns

Control and Ability to Change

Does the option allow Bridgend 

County Borough Council to 

increase control and develop 

services?

No, services would be very 

unlikely to increase Bridgend 

County Borough Council's ability 

to control change

No, services would be unlikely to 

increase Bridgend County 

Borough Council’s ability to 

control change

No change from current 

operation

Yes, services would be likely to 

increase Bridgend County 

Borough Council’s ability to 

control change

Yes, services would be very likely 

to increase Bridgend County 

Borough Council’s ability to 

control change

Service Quality

Does the option improve the 

quality of service offered to 

residents?

No, quality of service would 

probably be negatively affected

No, quality of service would be 

affected slightly negatively

No, quality of service remains as 

current

Yes, quality would be slightly 

improved

Yes, quality of service would be 

strongly improved

P
age 73



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

  
Meeting of:  

 
SUBJECT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 3 

 

 
Date of Meeting:  

 
19 March 2024 

 

 
Report Title:  

 
FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME UPDATE  

 

 
Report Owner / 
Corporate Director:  

 

 
CHIEF OFFICER – LEGAL & REGULATORY SERVICES, HR 

& CORPORATE POLICY 
 

 
Responsible 
Officer:  

 
MERYL LAWRENCE 

SENIOR DEMOCRATIC SERVICES OFFICER – SCRUTINY 
 

Policy Framework 
and Procedure 
Rules:  

The work of the Overview & Scrutiny Committees relates to 
the review and development of plans, policy or strategy that 
form part of the Council’s Policy Framework and 
consideration of plans, policy or strategy relating to the 
power to promote or improve economic, social or 
environmental wellbeing in the County Borough of 
Bridgend. Any changes to the structure of the Scrutiny 
Committees and the procedures relating to them would 
require the Bridgend County Borough Council Constitution 
to be updated. 

Executive 
Summary:  
 

The Council’s Constitution requires the Corporate Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee to develop and implement a 
Forward Work Programme for the Committee. 
 
The Council’s Constitution also provides for each Subject 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee to propose items for the 
Forward Work Programme having regard for the Council’s 
Corporate Priorities and Risk Management framework, for 
the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee to have 
oversight and refer any cross-cutting topics to a Committee 
or Research and Evaluation Panel. 
 
The Committee is asked to consider and agree its Forward 
Work Programme, identify any specific information it 
wishes to be included in and any invitees they wish to 
attend for the reports for the next two Committee meetings, 
identify any further items for consideration on the Forward 
Work Programme having regard to the criteria set out in the 
report, consider the Recommendations Monitoring Action 
Sheet and note that the Forward Work Programme and the 
Recommendations Monitoring Action Sheet for the Subject 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be reported to the 
next meeting of COSC. 

 
  

Page 75

Agenda Item 6



 

 
 
1. Purpose of Report  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to: 

 
a) Present the Committee with the Forward Work Programme (Appendix A) for 

consideration and approval; 
 

b) Request any specific information the Committee identifies to be included in the 
items for the next two meetings, including invitees they wish to attend; 
 

c) Request the Committee to identify whether there are presently any further items 
for consideration on the Forward Work Programme having regard to the 
selection criteria in paragraph 3.5 of this report; 
 

d) Present the Recommendations Monitoring Action Sheet (Appendix B) to track 
responses to the Committee’s recommendations made at previous meeting; 

 

e) Advise that the Committee’s updated Forward Work Programme, any feedback 
from the Committee and the Recommendations Monitoring Action Sheet will be 
reported to the next meeting of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
(COSC).  

 
2. Background  
 
2.1 The Council’s Constitution requires the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

to develop and implement a Forward Work Programme for the Committee. 
 
2.2 The Council’s Constitution also provides for each Subject Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee to propose items for the Forward Work Programme having regard for 
the Council’s Corporate Priorities and Risk Management framework, for the 
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee to have oversight and refer any cross-
cutting topics to a Committee or Research and Evaluation Panel. 

 
 Best Practice / Guidance 
 
2.3 The Centre for Governance and Scrutiny’s (CfGS) Good Scrutiny Guide recognises 

the importance of the Forward Work Programme. In order to ‘lead and own the 
process’, it states that Councillors should have ownership of their Committee’s work 
programme, and be involved in developing, monitoring and evaluating it. The Good 
Scrutiny Guide also states that, in order to make an impact, the scrutiny workload 
should be coordinated and integrated into corporate processes, to ensure that it 
contributes to the delivery of corporate objectives, and that work can be undertaken 
in a timely and well-planned manner.  

 
2.4 Forward Work Programmes need to be manageable to maximize the effective use 

of the limited time and resources of Scrutiny Committees.  It is not possible to 
include every topic proposed.  Successful Scrutiny is about looking at the right topic 
in the right way and Members need to be selective, while also being able to 
demonstrate clear arguments for including or excluding topics.  

 

Page 76



 

2.5    The CfGS’s guide to effective work programming ‘A Cunning Plan?’ makes the 
following reference to the importance of good work programming: 

 
‘Effective work programming is the bedrock of an effective scrutiny function. Done 
well it can help lay the foundations for targeted, incisive and timely work on issues 
of local importance, where scrutiny can add value. Done badly, scrutiny can end up 
wasting time and resources on issues where the impact of any work done is likely to 
be minimal.’ 
 

 
3. Current situation / proposal  
 

Forward Work Programme 
 
3.1 Following the approval of the schedule of Scrutiny Committee meeting dates at the 

Annual Meeting of Council on 17 May 2023, the standing statutory reports to this 
Scrutiny Committee of: the Corporate Plan, the Medium Term Financial Strategy 
(MTFS) and Budget, Performance and Budget Monitoring, etc. have been mapped 
to the appropriate timely meeting dates into a draft Forward Work Programme. 

 
3.2  The draft outline Forward Work Programme for each Scrutiny Committee have been 

prepared using a number of difference sources, including:  
 

• Corporate Risk Assessment;  

• Directorate Business Plans; 

• Previous Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme report topics / minutes; 

• Committee / Member proposed topics; 

• Policy Framework; 

• Cabinet Work Programme; 

• Discussions with Corporate Directors; 

• Performance Team regarding the timing of performance information.  
 

3.3 There are items where there is a statutory duty for Policy Framework documents to 
be considered by Scrutiny, e.g., the MTFS including draft budget proposals 
scheduled for consideration in December 2023 and January 2024, following which 
COSC will coordinate the conclusions and recommendations from each of the 
Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committees in a report on the overall strategic 
overview of Cabinet’s draft Budget proposals to the meeting of Cabinet in February 
2024.   
 

3.4  An effective Forward Work Programme will identify the issues that the Committee 
wishes to focus on during the year and provide a clear plan.  However, at each 
meeting the Committee will have an opportunity to review this as the Forward Work 
Programme Update will be a standing item on the Agenda, detailing which items are 
scheduled for future meetings and be requested to clarify any information to be 
included in reports and the list of invitees.  The Forward Work Programme will remain 
flexible and will be revisited at each COSC meeting with input from each Subject 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee reported and any updated information gathered 
from Forward Work Programme meetings with Corporate Directors. 

 
 
 

Page 77



 

 Identification of Further Items 
 
3.5 The Committee is reminded of the Criteria Form which Members can use to 

propose further items for the FWP which the Committee can then consider for 
prioritisation at a future meeting.  The Criteria Form emphasises the need to 
consider issues such as impact, risk, performance, budget and community 
perception when identifying topics for investigation and to maximise the impact 
scrutiny can have on a topic and the outcomes for people.  Criteria which can help 
the Committee come to a decision on whether to include a referred topic, are set out 
below: 

 
 Recommended Criteria for Selecting Scrutiny Topics: 
 
 PUBLIC INTEREST:  The concerns of local people should influence the issues 

chosen for scrutiny;  
 
 ABILITY TO CHANGE:  Priority should be given to issues that the Committee 

can realistically influence, and add value to;  
 
 PERFORMANCE:  Priority should be given to the areas in which the Council 

is not performing well;  
 
 EXTENT:  Priority should be given to issues that are relevant to all 

or large parts of the County Borough, or a large number 
of the Authority’s service users or its population; 

 
 REPLICATION:  Work programmes must take account of what else is 

happening in the areas being considered to avoid 
duplication or wasted effort.  

 

 Reasons to Reject Scrutiny Topics: 
 

 • The issue is already being addressed / being examined elsewhere and change is   
              imminent.  

 • The topic would be better addressed elsewhere (and can be referred there).  

 • Scrutiny involvement would have limited / no impact upon outcomes. 

 • The topic may be sub-judice or prejudicial. 

 • The topic is too broad to make a review realistic and needs refining / scoping. 

 • New legislation or guidance relating to the topic is expected within the next year.  

 • The topic area is currently subject to inspection or has recently undergone  
    substantial change / reconfiguration. 
 

Corporate Parenting 
 

3.6 Corporate Parenting is the term used to describe the responsibility of a local 
authority towards care experienced children and young people. This is a legal 
responsibility given to local authorities by the Children Act 1989 and the Children 
Act 2004. The role of the Corporate Parent is to seek for children in public care the 
outcomes every good parent would want for their own children. The Council as a 
whole is the ‘Corporate Parent’, therefore all Members have a level of responsibility 
for care experienced children and young people in Bridgend. 

 

Page 78



 

3.7 In this role, it is suggested that Members consider how each item they consider 
affects care experienced children and young people, and in what way can the 
Committee assist in these areas. 
 

3.8 Scrutiny Champions can greatly support the Committee in this by advising them of 
the ongoing work of the Cabinet Committee Corporate Parenting and particularly 
any decisions or changes which they should be aware of as Corporate Parents. 

 
3.9 The Forward Work Programme for the Committee is attached as Appendix A for 

the Committee’s consideration. 
 
3.10 The Recommendations Monitoring Action Sheet to track responses to the 

Committee’s recommendations made at the previous meetings is attached as 
Appendix B. 

 
 
4. Equality implications (including Socio-economic Duty and Welsh Language) 
    
4.1  The Protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic 

Duty and the impact on the use of the Welsh Language have been considered in 
the preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales, the Council must consider 
the impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the review of policies, 
strategies, services and functions. It is considered that there will be no significant or 
unacceptable equality impacts as a result of this report.  

 
 
5. Well-being of Future Generations implications and connection to Corporate 

Well-being Objectives 
 
5.1 The Act provides the basis for driving a different kind of public service in Wales,  

with 5 Ways of Working to guide how public services should work to deliver for 
people. The following is a summary to show how the 5 Ways of Working to achieve 
the well-being goals have been used to formulate the recommendations within this 
report: 

 

• Long-term - The approval of this report will assist in the planning of Scrutiny 
business in both the short-term and in the long-term on its policies, budget and 
service delivery. 
 

• Prevention - The early preparation of the Forward Work Programme allows for 
the advance planning of Scrutiny business where Members are provided an 
opportunity to influence and improve decisions before they are made by 
Cabinet. 

 

• Integration - The report supports all the wellbeing objectives. 
 

• Collaboration - Consultation on the content of the Forward Work Programme 
has taken place with the Corporate Management Board, Heads of Service and 
Elected Members. 

 

• Involvement - Advanced publication of the Forward Work Programme ensures 
that stakeholders can view topics that will be discussed in Committee meetings 
and are provided with the opportunity to engage. 

Page 79



 

 

5.2  When setting its Forward Work Programme, the Committee should consider how 
each item they propose to scrutinise assists in the achievement of the Council’s 7 
Wellbeing Objectives under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015 as follows :-   
 
1. A County Borough where we protect our most vulnerable 
2. A County Borough with fair work, skilled, high-quality jobs and thriving towns 
3. A County Borough with thriving valleys communities 
4. A County Borough where we help people meet their potential 
5. A County Borough that is responding to the climate and nature emergency 
6. A County Borough where people feel valued, heard and part of their community 
7. A County Borough where we support people to live healthy and happy lives  

 
 

6. Climate Change Implications  
 
6.1 The Committee should consider how each item they scrutinise affects climate 

change, the Council’s Net Zero Carbon 2030 target and how it meets the Council’s 
commitments to protect and sustain the environment over the long term. There are 
no Climate Change Implications arising from this report.    
 
 

7. Safeguarding and Corporate Parent Implications 
 
7.1 The Committee should consider how each item they scrutinise affects care 

experienced children and young people, and in what way the Committee can assist 
in these areas. Safeguarding is everyone’s business and means protecting peoples’ 
health, wellbeing and human rights, and enabling them to live free from harm, abuse 
and neglect. There are no Safeguarding and Corporate Parent Implications arising 
from this report.    

 
 
8.  Financial Implications  
 
8.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. 
 
 
9. Recommendation 

 
9.1   The Committee is recommended to: 

a) Consider and approve the Forward Work Programme for the Committee 
attached as Appendix A;  
 

b) Identify any specific information the Committee wishes to be included in the 
items for the next two meetings, including invitees they wish to attend; 
 

c) Identify whether there are presently any further items for consideration on the 
Forward Work Programme having regard to the selection criteria in paragraph 
3.5 of this report. 
 

Page 80



 

d) Note the Recommendations Monitoring Action Sheet for the Committee attached 
as Appendix B to track responses to the Committee’s recommendations made 
at the previous meetings; 
 

e) Note that the Forward Work Programme, any feedback from the Committee and 
the Recommendations Monitoring Action Sheet will be reported to the next 
meeting of COSC. 

 

 

Background documents 
 
None.  

Page 81



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A 

2023-24 Forward Work Programme 
Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 3  

 
 

Monday 19 June 2023 at 4.00pm 

Report Topic Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Invitees 

 
Update on the Shared 
Prosperity Fund  
 
Corporate Parenting 
Champion Nomination 
Report  
 
Draft FWP 
 

 
 
 

 
Cabinet Members 
Cabinet Member for Climate Change 
and Environment  
Cabinet Member for Community Safety 
and Wellbeing  
Cabinet Member for Housing, Planning 
and Regeneration  
Officers 
Corporate Director – Communities  
Head of Operations – Community 
Services  
Group Manger – Economy, Natural 
Resources and Sustainability  
 
External 
  

 
 
 

Tuesday 25 July 2023 at 4.00pm 

Report Topics Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Invitees 

 
Update on Communities 
Directorate Position and 
Challenges 

 
Extraordinary meeting 
 
Reviewing the challenges faced by 
the Communities Directorate. 

 
Cabinet Members 
Leader  
Deputy Leader of Council and Cabinet 
Member of Social Services and Health  
Cabinet Member for Finance, 
Resources and Legal 
Cabinet Member for Climate Change 
and Environment 
Cabinet Member for Education 
Cabinet Member for Community Safety 
and Wellbeing 
Cabinet Member for Housing, Planning 
and Regeneration  
 
Officers  
Chief Executive 
Chief Officer Finance, Performance and 
Change  
Corporate Director, Communities 
 
External - NA 
  

 

Page 83



APPENDIX A 

Monday 25 September 2023 at 4.00pm 

Report Topics Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Invitees 

 
 
Homelessness Strategy  
 

 

 

 

Cabinet Members 
Cabinet Member for Housing, Planning 
and Regeneration   
 
Officers 
Chief Officer Finance, Performance and 
Change 
Head of Performance and Partnerships  
Strategic Housing Commissioning 
Manager 
 
External 
Head of Policy and Communications, 
Crisis Cymru 

 

Monday 27 November at 4.00pm 

Report Topics Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Invitees 

Strategic Transport 
Projects 

 

Transport Planning 
Future Priorities 

Cabinet Members 
Cabinet Member for Climate Change 
and Environment; 
Cabinet Member for Housing, Planning 
and Regeneration; 
 
Officers 
Corporate Director, Communities;  
Group Manager Planning & 
Development Services; and 
Strategic Transportation Planning Team 
Leader  

 

Monday 22 January 2024 at 4.00pm 

Report Topics Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Invitees 

 
Draft Medium Term 
Financial Strategy 2024-
25 to 2027-28 and Budget 
Proposals 
 

 
 

Cabinet Members 
Leader  
Deputy Leader of Council and Cabinet 
Member of Social Services and Health  
Cabinet Member for Finance, 
Resources and Legal 
Cabinet Member for Climate Change 
and Environment 
Cabinet Member for Community Safety 
and Wellbeing 
Cabinet Member for Housing, Planning 
and Regeneration  
Officers 
Chief Executive  
Chief Officer Finance, Performance and 
Change  
Corporate Director Communities  

Page 84



APPENDIX A 

Tuesday 19 March 2024 at 4.00pm 

Report Topics Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Invitees 

 
Future Waste Services 
Work Stream post 2026 
(Provisional) 

 

 

 Cabinet Members 
Leader of the Council 
Cabinet Member for Climate Change 
and Environment 
 
Officers 
Corporate Director, Communities 
Head of Operations - Community 
Services  
Cleaner Streets & Waste Contract 
Manager  
 
External 
 

 
 

Monday 22 April 2024 at 4.00pm 

Report Topics Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Invitees 

 

 
 
Caerau Minewater 
Project Review 

 
 

 

 

 

 
Cabinet Members 
Cabinet Member for Community Safety 
and Wellbeing 
 
Officers 
Corporate Director Communities 
Head of Operations - Community 
Services 
 
Group Manager - Economy, Natural 
Resources & Sustainability  
 
External 
 

 

2024-25 Draft Forward Work Programme 
Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 3  

 

 
 

Monday 15 July 2024 4.00pm  

Report Topic Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Invitees 

 
Valleys Regeneration 
Strategy  
 

 
 
 

Cabinet Members 
Cabinet Member for Housing, Planning 
and Regeneration  
 
Officers 
Corporate Director Communities  
 
External 

Page 85



APPENDIX A 

  

 
 
 

Monday 30 September 2024 4.00pm 

Report Topics Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Invitees 

 

Housing Update 
 

 

Affordable; Accessible; Social; 
Energy efficiency housing; 
Registered Social Landlords 

Cabinet Members 
Cabinet Member for Housing, Planning 
and Regeneration  
 
Officers 
Corporate Director Communities  
 
External 
  

 

Monday 2 December 2024 4.00pm 

Report Topics Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Invitees 

 
 

 Future Waste  

 

 

 

Cabinet Members 
Leader of the Council  
Cabinet Member for Climate Change 
and the Environment  
 
Officers 
Corporate Director Communities  
Head of Operations - Community 
Services  
 
External 
 

 

Monday 20 January 2025 4.00pm 

Report Topics Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Invitees 

 
Medium Term Financial 

Strategy 2025-26 to 
2028-29   

 Cabinet Members 
Leader of the Council  
Deputy Leader of Council and Cabinet 
Member of Social Services and Health  
Cabinet Member for Finance, 
Resources and Legal 
Cabinet Member for Climate Change 
and Environment 
Cabinet Member for Community Safety 
and Wellbeing 
Cabinet Member for Housing, Planning 
and Regeneration  
Officers 
Chief Executive  
Chief Officer Finance, Performance and 
Change  
Corporate Director Communities  

 

Page 86



APPENDIX A 

 
 

Monday 17 February 2025 4.00pm 

Report Topics Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Invitees 

 

Maesteg Town Hall 
Review 

 
 Lessons Learned - COSC 

delegated the Lessons Learned 
report to SOSC 3 to consider, 

when the project has been 
completed. 

Cabinet Members 
Cabinet Member for Housing, Planning 
and Regeneration  
Cabinet Member for Community Safety 
and Wellbeing 
 
Officers 
Corporate Director Communities  
 
External 
  

   

Monday 7 April 2025 4.00pm 

Report Topics Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Invitees 

 

Climate Change 
Decarbonisation 
 

 
Update on progress and future 
priorities given current and future 
budget implications  
 
Electric charging points update 

Cabinet Members 
Cabinet Member for Climate Change 
and the Environment  
 
Officers 
Corporate Director Communities  
 
External 
 

 
 

 

Member Briefing sessions 

• Infrastructure Delivery - including specifically condition of the highways / potholes 

• Corporate Joint Committees Regional Responsibilities 

• Communities Directorate Target Operating Model (TOM)  
 
Information reports 

• Audit Wales ‘Springing Forward Asset Management Inspection Report’ – 
including associated Action Plan  

•  Community Transfers (CAT) - Position Update 
 

Potential Items  

• Heat Network projects Update 

• Porthcawl Regeneration Update  

• Capital Programme  

 

Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B 

 

 

Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 3 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS MONITORING ACTION SHEET 2023-2024 
 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome Response 

19 June 
2023 

Update on 
Shared 
Prosperity Fund 

While the Committee acknowledged that 
starting a scheme or project before written 
confirmation of any Government Grant 
Funding carried some risk, Members 
reflected on whether the process 
undertaken by Cabinet and Officers had 
taken into consideration the risk of the UK 
Government not permitting the rolling of 
year 1 funding into year 2. Members 
therefore recommended that Cabinet 
consider whether, on balance, starting the 
process of these projects before funding 
was received was a justified risk moving 
forward and also provide reassurance as to 
how they could ensure it will be considered 
in future decisions, as the Authority would 
not want to receive any less than the 8.3% 
announced by the United Kingdom (UK) 
Government.  

Cabinet 
Members / 
Corporate 
Director of 
Communities 

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 19 
September 2023. 

https://democratic.brid
gend.gov.uk/documents
/s31468/SOSC3Recomm
endationResponses19Ju
ne23.pdf  

19 June 
2023 

Update on 
Shared 
Prosperity Fund  

The Committee furthermore recommend 
that a way of providing short term interim 
funding (including potentially reserves) for 
projects that have a high degree of 
certainty of Grant Funding be explored and 
consideration be given to mechanisms for 
managing risk and allowing projects to 

Chief Officer - 
Finance, 
Performance & 
Change / 
Corporate 
Director of 
Communities  

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 19 
September 2023. 

https://democratic.brid
gend.gov.uk/documents
/s31468/SOSC3Recomm
endationResponses19Ju
ne23.pdf 

P
age 89

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31468/SOSC3RecommendationResponses19June23.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31468/SOSC3RecommendationResponses19June23.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31468/SOSC3RecommendationResponses19June23.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31468/SOSC3RecommendationResponses19June23.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31468/SOSC3RecommendationResponses19June23.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31468/SOSC3RecommendationResponses19June23.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31468/SOSC3RecommendationResponses19June23.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31468/SOSC3RecommendationResponses19June23.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31468/SOSC3RecommendationResponses19June23.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31468/SOSC3RecommendationResponses19June23.pdf


APPENDIX B 

 

 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome Response 

commence where Grant Funding had been 
agreed in principle, but not yet formalised.  

19 June 
2023 

Update on 
Shared 
Prosperity Fund  

That Members be informed of the outcome, 
as soon as possible, of whether or not the 
request made by a number of Authorities to 
roll over year 1 funding into year 2 had 
been granted.  

Corporate 
Director of 
Communities 

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 19 
September 2023. 

https://democratic.brid
gend.gov.uk/documents
/s31468/SOSC3Recomm
endationResponses19Ju
ne23.pdf 

19 June 
2023 

Update on 
Shared 
Prosperity Fund  

Information that the Director of 
Communities offered regarding 
engagement with community groups to 
establish the level of demand for Bridgend 
Local Investment Grant Funding and 
assistance required. This was in response 
to Members’ concerns regarding 
responsibilities and reliance on volunteers 
and organisations to deliver the projects 
and Officers’ explanations that part of the 
UKSPF was to build resilience and 
economic development, targeting 
communities that may not normally have 
access to that type of funding.  

Corporate 
Director of 
Communities 

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 19 
September 2023. 

https://democratic.brid
gend.gov.uk/documents
/s31468/SOSC3Recomm
endationResponses19Ju
ne23.pdf 

25 July 
2023  

Update on 
Communities 
Directorate 
Position and 
Challenges  

That the Update on Communities 
Directorate Position and Challenges 
report be made available to all Committee 
Members.  
 

Scrutiny  ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 19 
September 2023. 

https://democratic.brid
gend.gov.uk/documents
/s31469/SOSC3Recomm
endationResponses25Jul
y2023.pdf  

25 July 
2023  

Update on 
Communities 
Directorate 

The Committee welcomed the proposal of 
a plan over the next five years to develop 
a new Target Operating Model (TOM) as 
explained by the Corporate Director of 

Corporate 
Director for 
Communities / 
Scrutiny  

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 

https://democratic.brid
gend.gov.uk/documents
/s31469/SOSC3Recomm

P
age 90

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31468/SOSC3RecommendationResponses19June23.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31468/SOSC3RecommendationResponses19June23.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31468/SOSC3RecommendationResponses19June23.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31468/SOSC3RecommendationResponses19June23.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31468/SOSC3RecommendationResponses19June23.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31468/SOSC3RecommendationResponses19June23.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31468/SOSC3RecommendationResponses19June23.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31468/SOSC3RecommendationResponses19June23.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31468/SOSC3RecommendationResponses19June23.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31468/SOSC3RecommendationResponses19June23.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31469/SOSC3RecommendationResponses25July2023.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31469/SOSC3RecommendationResponses25July2023.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31469/SOSC3RecommendationResponses25July2023.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31469/SOSC3RecommendationResponses25July2023.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31469/SOSC3RecommendationResponses25July2023.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31469/SOSC3RecommendationResponses25July2023.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31469/SOSC3RecommendationResponses25July2023.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31469/SOSC3RecommendationResponses25July2023.pdf


APPENDIX B 

 

 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome Response 

Position and 
Challenges  

Communities, of what the Communities 
Directorate can deliver in alignment with 
their resources and budget. Looking at all 
the services they deliver, statutory 
responsibilities and the communities’ 
expectations. The Committee 
recommended that at the opportune time 
when the Target Operating Model (TOM) 
draft becomes available it is added to the 
Forward Work Programme for review by 
the Committee.  

circulated 19 
September 2023. 

endationResponses25Jul
y2023.pdf  

25 July 
2023 

Update on 
Communities 
Directorate 
Position and 
Challenges 

That the Town and Community Council 
Forum consider the current model of 
partnership working between the Local 
Authority and the local Town and 
Community Councils and explore options 
for better communication, more 
collaborative working and whether the 
authority can assist Town and Community 
Councils take on leadership of certain 
service provisions. The Members 
requested that the outcome of this 
discussion be provided back to 
Committee as an information report.  
 

Corporate 
Director for 
Communities / 
Democratic 
Services 
Manager 

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 19 
September 2023. 

https://democratic.brid
gend.gov.uk/documents
/s31469/SOSC3Recomm
endationResponses25Jul
y2023.pdf  

25 July 
2023 

Update on 
Communities 
Directorate 

The Committee discussed the 
Communities Directorate operating with a 
£31m budget allocation in the financial 
year 2023/2024 and it is representing 9% 

Corporate 
Director for 
Communities 

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 

https://democratic.brid
gend.gov.uk/documents
/s31469/SOSC3Recomm
endationResponses25Jul
y2023.pdf  

P
age 91

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31469/SOSC3RecommendationResponses25July2023.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31469/SOSC3RecommendationResponses25July2023.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31469/SOSC3RecommendationResponses25July2023.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31469/SOSC3RecommendationResponses25July2023.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31469/SOSC3RecommendationResponses25July2023.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31469/SOSC3RecommendationResponses25July2023.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31469/SOSC3RecommendationResponses25July2023.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31469/SOSC3RecommendationResponses25July2023.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31469/SOSC3RecommendationResponses25July2023.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31469/SOSC3RecommendationResponses25July2023.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31469/SOSC3RecommendationResponses25July2023.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31469/SOSC3RecommendationResponses25July2023.pdf


APPENDIX B 

 

 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome Response 

Position and 
Challenges 

of the authority’s budget. They 
considered whether any benchmarking 
had been done in terms of budget per 
head of population in the authority for 
Communities versus those of other 
authorities in South Wales of a similar 
size. The Chief Executive advised a piece 
of work had been commissioned through 
the Welsh Local Government Association 
(WLGA) which they intend to share in the 
next Budget Research and Evaluation 
Panel (BREP). 

circulated 19 
September 2023. 

25 Sept 
2023 

Homelessness 
Strategy 

The Committee recommended to 
strengthen the Strategy in terms of 
support for veterans and Armed Services 
personnel. 

Chief Officer – 
Finance, 
Performance 
and Change / 
Head of 
Partnerships 

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 13 
March 2024. 

https://democratic.brid
gend.gov.uk/ecSDDispla
yClassic.aspx?NAME=SD
854&ID=854&RPID=675
7126&sch=doc&cat=135
01&path=13490%2c134
94%2c13501&LLL=0&LLL
=0 

25 Sept 
2023 

Homelessness 
Strategy 

The Committee recommended to 
maximise effectiveness of the Strategy, 
that the strategic priority objectives be 
reviewed to ensure that they are SMART 
(Specific, Measurable, Achievable, 
Relevant and Timebound) and set out in 
the Action Plan and the timescales be 
broken down further detailing the year 
and month in which each action is 

Chief Officer – 
Finance, 
Performance 
and Change / 
Head of 
Partnerships 

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 13 
March 2024. 

https://democratic.brid
gend.gov.uk/ecSDDispla
yClassic.aspx?NAME=SD
854&ID=854&RPID=675
7126&sch=doc&cat=135
01&path=13490%2c134
94%2c13501&LLL=0&LLL
=0 

P
age 92

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD854&ID=854&RPID=6757126&sch=doc&cat=13501&path=13490%2c13494%2c13501&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD854&ID=854&RPID=6757126&sch=doc&cat=13501&path=13490%2c13494%2c13501&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD854&ID=854&RPID=6757126&sch=doc&cat=13501&path=13490%2c13494%2c13501&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD854&ID=854&RPID=6757126&sch=doc&cat=13501&path=13490%2c13494%2c13501&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD854&ID=854&RPID=6757126&sch=doc&cat=13501&path=13490%2c13494%2c13501&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD854&ID=854&RPID=6757126&sch=doc&cat=13501&path=13490%2c13494%2c13501&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD854&ID=854&RPID=6757126&sch=doc&cat=13501&path=13490%2c13494%2c13501&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD854&ID=854&RPID=6757126&sch=doc&cat=13501&path=13490%2c13494%2c13501&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD854&ID=854&RPID=6757126&sch=doc&cat=13501&path=13490%2c13494%2c13501&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD854&ID=854&RPID=6757126&sch=doc&cat=13501&path=13490%2c13494%2c13501&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD854&ID=854&RPID=6757126&sch=doc&cat=13501&path=13490%2c13494%2c13501&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD854&ID=854&RPID=6757126&sch=doc&cat=13501&path=13490%2c13494%2c13501&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD854&ID=854&RPID=6757126&sch=doc&cat=13501&path=13490%2c13494%2c13501&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD854&ID=854&RPID=6757126&sch=doc&cat=13501&path=13490%2c13494%2c13501&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD854&ID=854&RPID=6757126&sch=doc&cat=13501&path=13490%2c13494%2c13501&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD854&ID=854&RPID=6757126&sch=doc&cat=13501&path=13490%2c13494%2c13501&LLL=0&LLL=0


APPENDIX B 

 

 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome Response 

planned to be achieved, so that progress 
can be clearly measured. 

25 Sept 
2023 

Homelessness 
Strategy 

The Committee recommended that the 
Strategy be made more user friendly and 
as easy to navigate as possible. 

Chief Officer – 
Finance, 
Performance 
and Change / 
Head of 
Partnerships 

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 13 
March 2024. 

https://democratic.brid
gend.gov.uk/ecSDDispla
yClassic.aspx?NAME=SD
854&ID=854&RPID=675
7126&sch=doc&cat=135
01&path=13490%2c134
94%2c13501&LLL=0&LLL
=0 

25 Sept 
2023 

Homelessness 
Strategy 

The Committee requested a route map 
setting out the broad working practice 
model of what happens when someone 
presents as homeless, including the 
stages, timescales and type of services 
offered and where appropriate, average 
timescales for rehousing. 

Chief Officer – 
Finance, 
Performance 
and Change / 
Head of 
Partnerships 

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 13 
March 2024. 

https://democratic.brid
gend.gov.uk/ecSDDispla
yClassic.aspx?NAME=SD
854&ID=854&RPID=675
7126&sch=doc&cat=135
01&path=13490%2c134
94%2c13501&LLL=0&LLL
=0 

2 Oct 2023 Call In of Cabinet 
Decision: Hybont 
Project Gateway 
Review 

The Committee concluded that the 
Decision would not be referred back to 
Cabinet. 
 

- Complete. - 

27 Nov 
2023 

Strategic 
Transport 
Projects 

The Committee acknowledged that a list of 
schemes is required to be ready for any 
current or future transport funding bids, in 
the event that surplus funding is available 
from Welsh Government towards the end 
of the financial year. and for identifying 
projects for developer contributions 
through Section 106 planning (S106) 
agreements. Nevertheless, the Committee 

Corporate 
Director of 
Communities / 
Group Manager 
Planning & 
Development 
Services  

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 13 
March 2024. 

https://democratic.brid
gend.gov.uk/documents
/s32095/SOSC327Nov23
RecommendationsandR
esponses.pdf?LLL=-1 

P
age 93

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD854&ID=854&RPID=6757126&sch=doc&cat=13501&path=13490%2c13494%2c13501&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD854&ID=854&RPID=6757126&sch=doc&cat=13501&path=13490%2c13494%2c13501&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD854&ID=854&RPID=6757126&sch=doc&cat=13501&path=13490%2c13494%2c13501&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD854&ID=854&RPID=6757126&sch=doc&cat=13501&path=13490%2c13494%2c13501&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD854&ID=854&RPID=6757126&sch=doc&cat=13501&path=13490%2c13494%2c13501&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD854&ID=854&RPID=6757126&sch=doc&cat=13501&path=13490%2c13494%2c13501&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD854&ID=854&RPID=6757126&sch=doc&cat=13501&path=13490%2c13494%2c13501&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD854&ID=854&RPID=6757126&sch=doc&cat=13501&path=13490%2c13494%2c13501&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD854&ID=854&RPID=6757126&sch=doc&cat=13501&path=13490%2c13494%2c13501&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD854&ID=854&RPID=6757126&sch=doc&cat=13501&path=13490%2c13494%2c13501&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD854&ID=854&RPID=6757126&sch=doc&cat=13501&path=13490%2c13494%2c13501&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD854&ID=854&RPID=6757126&sch=doc&cat=13501&path=13490%2c13494%2c13501&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD854&ID=854&RPID=6757126&sch=doc&cat=13501&path=13490%2c13494%2c13501&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD854&ID=854&RPID=6757126&sch=doc&cat=13501&path=13490%2c13494%2c13501&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD854&ID=854&RPID=6757126&sch=doc&cat=13501&path=13490%2c13494%2c13501&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD854&ID=854&RPID=6757126&sch=doc&cat=13501&path=13490%2c13494%2c13501&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32095/SOSC327Nov23RecommendationsandResponses.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32095/SOSC327Nov23RecommendationsandResponses.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32095/SOSC327Nov23RecommendationsandResponses.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32095/SOSC327Nov23RecommendationsandResponses.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32095/SOSC327Nov23RecommendationsandResponses.pdf?LLL=-1


APPENDIX B 

 

 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome Response 

expressed some concerns over the 
process for transport projects, with no form 
of prioritisation, even with projects that fall 
under the same strategy, such as Active 
Travel.  Whilst appreciating that funding 
was controlled by Welsh Government, 
Members felt the system appeared to be 
the wrong way round and rather than 
waiting for funding to become available, a 
comprehensive table or plan of transport 
needs, solutions, and priorities within the 
Borough, to then use to go out and seek 
funding, would seem a far more effective 
method. 

 
Furthermore, Members expressed grave 
concerns over the future maintenance and 
ongoing costs for the Authority of any 
transport project, particularly in light of the 
Council’s current financial situation.  The 
Committee therefore viewed it as vital that 
some form of prioritisation was considered 
for transport projects taking account of the 
future financial situation of the Authority 
and its ability to be able to maintain these 
going forward. 
 
In light of the above, whilst acknowledging 
the limitations Officers faced around 

P
age 94



APPENDIX B 

 

 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome Response 

funding availability from Welsh 
Government, they still expressed concern 
that some of the projects could now 
potentially be inappropriate and moreover 
were concerned that because of the 
funding process that is in place, the 
Authority could find itself bidding for 
projects, ‘just because’ the funding is 
available, rather than because there is a 
distinct need for it.  With a review of the 
transport projects list scheduled to be 
undertaken in the near future, for 
agreement by Cabinet, the Committee 
recommended that the review take 
account of the following: 

 
➢ Whether projects are now out of 

date given how long they have 
been on the list; 

➢ Whether there is clear evidence of 
the ‘need’ for the project – for 
example, the benefits for the 
community, any evidence from 
similar projects that clearly indicate 
success in a modal shift; 

➢ How projects could be prioritised, 
even if just within their own 
strategy, such as Active Travel 

P
age 95



APPENDIX B 

 

 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome Response 

routes – could safety be used as a 
criterion for these projects? 

What are the future financial implications 
of any project for the Authority in relation 
to its maintenance liability as well as any 
potential impact on existing 
infrastructure? 

27 Nov 
2023 

Strategic 
Transport 
Projects 

In addition to this Members expressed 
concern that due to historical budget cuts, 
the Authority did not have the staffing 
resources and internal expertise to 
support some transport projects, 
particularly on the ability to estimate or 
provide any indicative costs of each 
scheme, which should be required to 
inform any decision on a project for the 
list or on which future funding bids to 
progress.  The Committee requested 
reassurance as to how this could be 
addressed going forward. 

Corporate 
Director of 
Communities / 
Group Manager 
Planning & 
Development 
Services  

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 13 
March 2024. 

https://democratic.brid
gend.gov.uk/documents
/s32095/SOSC327Nov23
RecommendationsandR
esponses.pdf?LLL=-1 

27 Nov 
2023 

Strategic 
Transport 
Projects 

Members highlighted that whilst the report 
did not deal specifically with other 
aspects such as parking, safety, 
pavements etc, these were intrinsically 
linked to transport projects.  The 
Committee therefore requested 
reassurance that a joined-up approach 
was being undertaken by the Authority 
when these projects were considered for 

Corporate 
Director of 
Communities / 
Group Manager 
Planning & 
Development 
Services  

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 13 
March 2024. 

https://democratic.brid
gend.gov.uk/documents
/s32095/SOSC327Nov23
RecommendationsandR
esponses.pdf?LLL=-1 

P
age 96

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32095/SOSC327Nov23RecommendationsandResponses.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32095/SOSC327Nov23RecommendationsandResponses.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32095/SOSC327Nov23RecommendationsandResponses.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32095/SOSC327Nov23RecommendationsandResponses.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32095/SOSC327Nov23RecommendationsandResponses.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32095/SOSC327Nov23RecommendationsandResponses.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32095/SOSC327Nov23RecommendationsandResponses.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32095/SOSC327Nov23RecommendationsandResponses.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32095/SOSC327Nov23RecommendationsandResponses.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32095/SOSC327Nov23RecommendationsandResponses.pdf?LLL=-1


APPENDIX B 

 

 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome Response 

funding bids, and that this form part of the 
evidence provided to the Committee for 
any future report on this subject. 

27 Nov 
2023 

Strategic 
Transport 
Projects 

To assist the Committee with future 
consideration of this subject, Members 
requested that a diagram or flowchart be 
provided to illustrate how the various 
transport projects fit under their own 
plans or strategies and how they then fit 
together. 

Corporate 
Director of 
Communities / 
Group Manager 
Planning & 
Development 
Services  

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 13 
March 2024. 

 
https://democratic.brid
gend.gov.uk/documents
/s32095/SOSC327Nov23
RecommendationsandR

esponses.pdf?LLL=-1 

27 Nov 
2023 

Strategic 
Transport 
Projects 

The Committee requested that the 
Democratic Services Manager explore 
whether it has been previously reported 
by Officers that there was a direct link 
between the Pyle Park and Ride scheme 
and the Porthcawl Metrolink project, as 
this was the Committee’s understanding. 

Corporate 
Director of 
Communities / 
Group Manager 
Planning & 
Development 
Services  

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 13 
March 2024. 

https://democratic.brid
gend.gov.uk/documents
/s32095/SOSC327Nov23
RecommendationsandR
esponses.pdf?LLL=-1 

22 January 
2024 

Medium Term 
Financial 
Strategy 2024-25 
– 2027-28 

The Committee made recommendations 
and requested additional information.  

Scrutiny / Chair 
of COSC  

ACTIONED: 
Recommendations 
formally reported 
to COSC and 
onward to Cabinet 
on 6 February 
2024 for 
consideration and 
response. 
 

https://democratic.brid
gend.gov.uk/ieListDocu
ments.aspx?CId=141&M
Id=4425&Ver=4&LLL=0 
 
 
 
https://democratic.brid
gend.gov.uk/ieListDocu
ments.aspx?CId=141&M
Id=4426&Ver=4 

P
age 97

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32095/SOSC327Nov23RecommendationsandResponses.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32095/SOSC327Nov23RecommendationsandResponses.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32095/SOSC327Nov23RecommendationsandResponses.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32095/SOSC327Nov23RecommendationsandResponses.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32095/SOSC327Nov23RecommendationsandResponses.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32095/SOSC327Nov23RecommendationsandResponses.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32095/SOSC327Nov23RecommendationsandResponses.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32095/SOSC327Nov23RecommendationsandResponses.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32095/SOSC327Nov23RecommendationsandResponses.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32095/SOSC327Nov23RecommendationsandResponses.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=141&MId=4425&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=141&MId=4425&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=141&MId=4425&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=141&MId=4425&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=141&MId=4426&Ver=4
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=141&MId=4426&Ver=4
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=141&MId=4426&Ver=4
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=141&MId=4426&Ver=4


APPENDIX B 

 

 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome Response 

Response from 
Cabinet on 20 
February 2024. 
 

 

P
age 98


	Agenda
	3 Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion
	Minutes , 25/07/2023 Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 3
	Minutes , 22/01/2024 Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 3

	4 Opsiynau Gwasanaeth Gwastraff yn y Dyfodol
	4a. Bridgend CBC Commissioning Options Report Final
	4b. A 2 1 Commisioning Options Evaluation Model

	6 Diweddariad Rhaglen Gwaith
	6a. Appendix A - FWP - SOSC 3
	6b. Appendix B - Action Sheet SOSC 3 - 2023-24




